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COMPANY PROFILE
2w i A

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (Stock Code: 2312,
“CFLG” or the “Company”, with its subsidiaries, collectively
the “Group”) is an investment company. Incorporated in the
Cayman Islands, the Company’s shares have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since October 2002.

CFLG strives to create value for its shareholders, leveraging
on favourable market conditions. With strong government
industry support, unique investment approach, and in-depth
knowledge of the investment market, CFLG would remain highly
adaptive to market conditions and would continue to look out
for opportunities in potential sectors.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESY A

Dear Shareholders,

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to present you with the 2019 Annual Report of China Financial
Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

During the year of 2019, the market sentiment was affected
by (i) the trade war between the United States of America (the
“United States”) and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
(the “Trade War”); and (i) local social incidents in Hong Kong.
Heng Seng Index fluctuated between 25,000 to 30,000 level,
recorded an increase of approximately 9% throughout the year
of 2019.

PRC ECONOMY

The PRC’s economy grew by 6.1% in 2019, compared with
6.6% in 2018, meeting the expectations of the PRC government
even amid a Trade War. The PRC’s gross domestic product
(“GDP”) growth was the slowest in 29 years, and the economy
is expected to remain under pressure.

In order to alleviate the downward pressure on the PRC
economy, Central Economic Work Conference (“CEWC”) held
in December 2019 emphasized the importance of stability and
ensured that the economy achieved high-quality growth. CEWC
noted that it () expect the People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”)
to keep monetary policy moderate and flexible in 2020; (i)
maintain proactive fiscal policy; and (iii) implement real estate
policies in accordance with each city’s requirements whilst the
long-term mechanism for stabilising land prices, house price
and market expectations in being created.

In order to support the PRC’s economic development, the
PBOC cut reserve requirement ratio by 50 basis point which
release about Renminbi 800 billion of long-term liquidity to
the market in January 2020. After the outbreak of Coronavirus
in late January 2020, PBOC even cut the loan prime rate in
February 2020 to lower the cost of capital of the firm and
stimulate the economy.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESY A

While the CEWC did not specify economic growth targets for
2020, it did state the need to “ensure a reasonable economic
growth and steady improvement in growth quality”. However,
the PRC may revise down its annual economic growth target
for 2020 in response to the impact of the coronavirus outbreak.

UNITED STATES AND EUROPEAN ECONOMY
The real GDP growth in the United States increased 2.3% in
2019, compared with 2.9% increase in 2018, the deceleration
in real GDP growth rate primarily reflected decelerations in
non-residential fixed investment and personal consumption
expenditures, while imports increased less in 2019 than that
in 2018 which may owing to escalation of trade dispute of the
Trade War and slipping in manufacturing activities in the United
States. However, the Federal Reserve had three consecutive
rate cuts in the second half of 2019 in order to stimulate the
economy in the United States.

The European Central Bank (the “ECB”) cut interest rate into
negative territory and restarted debt-buying programme in
response to sliding growth and inflation in 2019. In addition,
the Brexit uncertainties continued to pose risk to the European
economy. The eurozone economic growth was 1.2% in 2019,
in which down from a growth of 1.8% in 2018. The ECB
expects the eurozone economy to grow 1.1% only in 2020.

PROSPECT

The United States and the PRC signed phase one of trade deal
in Mid-danuary 2020, which should alleviate some uncertainties
on the market. However, the outbreak of coronavirus and
slowdown of economic activities would affect the global
economic growth in 2020. It is expected that the phase two
of trade talk between the United States and the PRC could be
more constructive and favorable to the market. At the same
time, it is also expected that central banks in the world could
continue to have loosening monetary policy to stimulate the
economic growth and support the market.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESY A

Given the uncertainties and expectations on the global
economy, the Group will be more cautious on managing the
investment portfolio. As the Group is able to make use of
competitive edge, the Group will continue to explore investment
opportunities to maximise the shareholders’ return.

Liu Hailong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, China Financial
Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) was mainly engaged in short to
medium term capital appreciation by investing in a diversified
portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted securities.

Global economy slowed down with protectionism and
geopolitical tension, but several central banks in the world
imposed loosening monetary policy in 2019 which showed
some support towards the large cap stocks, while the small
and mid-cap stocks might not be benefited. The S&P/
HKEX GEM index continued to crash approximately 45% in
2019, which was largely underperformed when compared
with Hang Seng Index. The Group recorded a loss on listed
investments of approximately HK$45,490,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019. However, the Group completed a
share placement on 23 January 2020 to replenish the working
capital and potential investments.

The Group recorded a fair value loss on unlisted investments
in NS ERIZARAB R AF (‘B4 8EJR”) of approximately
HK$1,973,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019. Due to
the motor vehicles market in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) remained huge, it is expected that the motor vehicles
and related services market is optimistic. On the other hand,
the Group had entered into a capital injection agreement (the
“Capital Injection Agreement”) to invest the unlisted equity
interests in AV ERERHEBR AT (the “Capital Injection”)
in 2019 (for details about the Capital Injection, please refer
to the announcement dated 12 April 2019). Due to no further
discussion in relation to Capital Injection, the Capital Injection
was terminated in June 2019 under the provision of the Capital
Injection Agreement.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

OUTLOOK

The International Monetary Fund revised down the global
growth for 2020, from 3.4% to 3.3%, the downward revision
primarily reflects negative effects of surprises such as economy
in emerging markets and social unrest, which led to a
reassessment of growth prospects in the coming two years.
The global growth would be dependent on avoiding escalation
of tensions between the United States of America (the “United
States”) and the PRC, as well as the United Kingdom’s ability
to reach a trade deal with the European Union. The Group
remains cautious on the stock market in 2020. The Group will
continue to monitor the market movement closely and explore
listed and unlisted investment opportunities so as to diversify
the investment portfolio and sourcing stable investments to
reduce the risk of concentration; and to enhance the investment
return for shareholders of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the Group’s
listed equity investments was approximately HK$68,867,000
(2018: HK$111,843,000) while carrying value of the Group’s
unlisted equity investment was approximately HK$12,270,000
(2018: HK$14,518,000).

The Group recorded sales proceeds from disposals of trading
listed equity securities of approximately HK$90,860,000 (2018:
HK$140,995,000) for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
realised and unrealised losses on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
were approximately HK$23,854,000 (2018: HK$2,701,000) and
HK$23,609,000 (2018: HK$2,445,000) respectively. Loss for the
year was approximately HK$65,683,000 (2018: HK$27,128,000)
which was mainly attributable to the operating expenses and
equity investments losses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B RG w  Mor

EQUITY INVESTMENTS RAKRE
Listed below are the particulars of the Group’s major listed and ANEBR-_ZE—hFE+-_A=+—Hz=*
unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2019: EEFMEIELETMBRAZEFHIOT

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-R-AFTZR=T-RRER

Approximate
percentage of
Approximate Market attributable to
Number of  percentage of Market  value/fair ~the Group’s ~ Dividend  Dividend Sales  Realised Unrealised Fair value
Name of investees Principal activities shares held interests held Cost prices value  netassets  received cover  proceeds (loss)/profit (loss)/profit  (loss)/gai
BN BE% 3 3 A¥E
gt §:31 W/ BEELRE (£8)/ (B8)/ (E8)/
FRENTER IEEH fERH#E HEM 23 Wl AFE BHESRE URZRE  RSLE  HERE ¢ Wi ¢
(HK$'000) (HKS)  (HK$'000) (HK§'000) (HKS$'000)  (HK$000)  (HK$'000)  (HKS'000)
(Fi7) (En)  (TER) (F#7) (Fén) (FEn) (Fin)  (Fin)
Listed equity securities
IHRERE
(a)  Future Bright Mining Holdings ~ Marble and marble-related business and 177,600,000 4.59% 32,804 0075 13,320 19.24% - NiA 698 (1,168) (6,002) (170)
Limited (2212) (‘Future trading of commodties T#R
Bright Mining’) REABARABRRBERRERES
BERZERERAT 21
(mkEx)
(o) Mii International Holdings Develop, manufacture and sell premium 41,850,000 2.78% 12,909 0.280 11,662 16.85% - NA 10,529 (7,388) 7190 (198)
Limited (1715) kitchen appliances in the PRC T#ER
(*Miji International’) RPERE BERUEREFRRAR
BRERAR(TIY)
(CkEER)
() Hing Ming Holdings Limited Providing rental services of temporary 6,988,000 1.75% 9,808 1160 8,106 11.71% - NA 2,989 (622) (1,701) (2.223)
(8425 (*Hing Ming’) suspended working platforms and other T#R
AR ERARAF8425) equipment and trading of equipment and
#1) spare parts
REERRHRIMREORERBRRE
REHHES
(d)  National Investments Fund Investments in a diversified portfolio of listed 41,072,000 449% 7542 0174 ALY 10.33% - N/A 10212 (1,394 (395) (1,789)
Limited (1227) and unlisted companies &R
(‘National Investments’) RENEARELHAAZ ST RERA
AEREESARAA(1227)
([E#%E)
() WAC Holdings Limited (8619)  Provision of construction engineering 2040000 Less than 1% 5,364 3.000 6,120 8.84% - N/A 3497 963 756 1,719
(WAC") consultant on comprehensive structural D% TER
WAC Holdings Limited (8619) and geotechnical engineering
([WAcl) RERAFBRETIRNBETIRER
fy ISP Global Limited (8487) (1SP")  Engaged in the sales, installation 6,700,000 Less than 1% 7098 0.850 5695 8.23% - NiA 2491 (74 (7,345) (1419
ISP Global Limited (8467) and maintenance of sound and D% TER
(11sp)) communication system solutions, and
alert alarm systems in Singapore
REMANEHE REREFEEREA
AERRPRREEZARE
{9 RMH Holdings Limited (8437) Provision of specialty care services with 29,896,000 4.98% 14,701 0.161 4818 6.95% - NiA 117 (1,089) (2829 (3918
(RMH Holdings') medical, surgical, laser and aesthetic T#R
EEERERAEG treatments in Singapore
([&5ER) REMRESER M AXREERE
RESZABRE
(h) Wan Leader International Limited ~ Freight forwarding and related logistics 16,560,000 197% 4753 0224 3,709 5.36% - NiA 1838 (1.246) (1,044 (2.290)
(8482) (*Wan Leader’) services and warehousing and related T#R
BREERERAT B0 value-added services
([EHE)) EERERERNRRBRE B RIEBEE
%
() Pacific Legend Group Limited  Sale and leasing home furniture and 18,220,000 Less than 1% 4,351 0130 2,369 3.42% - NA 6,149 (332) (1,988) 2.320)
(8547) (*Pacific Legend") accessories; and provision of design D% TER
Pacific Legend Group Limited consultancy services for fitting out
(8547) ([Pacific Legend]) interiors with furnishing
ERER RREEAR

FERFEEEH
Ritkamy

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B RG w  Mor

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Approximate
percentage of

BECR-RETAST-A2ER

Approximate Market attributable to
Number of  percentage of Market  value/fair ~ the Group’s  Dividend  Dividend Sales  Realised Unrealised  Fair value
Name of investees Principal activities shares held interests held Cost prices value  netassets  received cover  proceeds (loss)/profit (loss)/profit (| i
EEEEE L i A28 AVE
igez 344 wHE/ FEREZRE (58)/ (BB)/ (BB)/
FRELDEE IEEH FEROHE HEAM iz Ll AFE  BHEAL WRZRE  REME  HERE ¢} L¢3 ¢
(HK$'000) (HK§)  (HK$000) (HK$'000) (HK§000)  (HK§'000)  (HKS'000)  (HK$000)
(Fi&n) (B) (TR (Fi&n) (TEn) (Fan)  (FEn)  (FEn)
() CaN Holdings Limited (8430) Provision of transport and storage services, 21,110,000 4.24% 12,747 0.080 2169 3.13% - N/A 770 (874) (9,299) (10,173)
(‘C8N Holdings") trucking and hubbing services to the &R
B ERAERA840) logistics industry in Singapore
[(E={:2:59)] RAMENEREEERAERE -
TREEEREHRE
(k) Stream Ideas Group Limited Provision of onling advertising services - - - - - N/A - N/A 11,048 (1,230) 1,562 332
(8401) (“Stream Ideas which consist of social viral service, TR @R
Group’) engager service and mass blogging
BREEARLF (8400 service
FiELE) REBIRERBOERHEERY
EH2ERBRARARRE
() Asia Television Holdings Limited ~ Engaged in fabric and clothing business, - - - - - N/A - N/A 25,654 (5,899 (952) (6,851)
(707) (‘Asia Television’) securities investment and brokerage TER TER
ERBRARAF(T0 services, media, cultural and
Z8)) entertainment business, and money
lending business
RERHRAKER ERREREL
T REULRREXBR
HEEH
Other listed investments NA NA 6,062 NA 3,757 5.43% - NA 13,868 (3,601) 41 (3,190)
At LHRE TER @R it AR
Unlisted equity securities
FEFRERE
m BAEE Engaged in the business of providing NiA 3.00% 15,000 N/A 12,270 17.78% - N/A - - (1,973) (1,973)
Rl consumer financial services to owners AER AR iR

of motor vehicles in the PRC
ReERFEEIREEEZEREBL
20

(a)

Future Bright Mining

The investment committee of the Company (“Investment
Committee”) noted that apart from existing marble
and marble-related business, Future Bright Mining
continued to develop the Yiduoyan project and develop
product recognition which would enhance its business
performance.

The Investment Committee considered that Future
Bright Mining intended to increase the variety of marble,
marble resources and marble reserve, and marble-related
products through the acquisition of marble projects in the
PRC which would enhance the development of marble
and marble-related business of Future Bright Mining.

(a)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B RG w  Mor

(b)

(c)

Miji International

The Investment Committee noted that Miji International
adopted a prudent approach to run its business
operations, offer a wider range of products and services
that could capture the demand from consumers of a wider
age group and those who pursue a healthier lifestyle.

The Investment Committee considered that in response
to the weakening economy and the slowing consumer
spending, Miji International closely monitored the cost
effectiveness of its marking strategies and implemented
appropriate measures to reduce operating costs. Miji
International also actively promoted its brand and
products to middle-class and upper-middle class
customers, in which enhance the business development
of Miji International in long run.

Hing Ming

The Investment Committee noted that Hing Ming acquired
additional tower cranes in order to capture the market
demand of rental services of tower crane and meet the
needs of customers. It retained technicians and sales
person in order to support operation in the tower crane
rental business and diversify Hing Ming income stream.

The Investment Committee considered that Hing Ming
acquired new motors and other necessary components
for replacement of old temporary suspended working
platforms, which would strengthen the market position in
the suspended working platform industry.

W O China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Annual Report 2019

(b)

(c)

Sk % B B
RAEBE I EIARERRDRE
BTSSR  WREEEIN
EREERY AR EEIFRA
BIKO W B & BB K 2 B A8 T R
EEE TSR -

?xéf%igu%%%ﬁlm%f‘ﬁi‘“
R NOEEE R E K E
WﬁwW&AM“ R B B AR 2K
 REUEE A MR R R
M&Fﬁﬁfﬁ nhE R Eam T PE
EERTLEERRP  REAMX

TSEI AE S g

9 8%

w"EE AEEEﬂBﬁ% R
ERAEREATMEERERESR
FPHEk BEEERIINEARLE
%‘u&%m&m&%%Aa M
TREEARERBEEKNE

B H I ARIRZ Tl o

e R AEEEENNGE
E@%%E%# LA B 2 2 O B
ZEESENPMITENT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B RG w  Mor

(d)

(e)

National Investments

The Investment Committee noted that National
Investments had been actively exploring other investment
opportunities to diversify the existing investment portfolio
of National Investments so as to optimise the operational
efficiency and to improve the cash flow of National
Investments.

The Investment Committee considered that National
Investments would continue to implement diversified
investment strategy aimed at identifying suitable
investment opportunities with potential of asset
appreciation. National Investments would also continue to
adopt and maintain a prudent but proacted investment
approach and would closely monitor the performance
of the investment portfolios to capture the capital
appreciation of the investments.

WAC

The Investment Committee noted that the revenue of
WAC decreased mainly due to the decrease in revenue
contribution from structural and geotechnical engineering
consultancy services of construction of new properties,
the market competition intensified as competitors offered
their service at lower prices.

The Investment Committee considered that the number
of properties to be built and maintained in Hong Kong
remained to be the key driver for the growth of the
construction engineering consultancy industry. With the
experienced management team and reputation in the
market. WAC was well-positioned to compete against its
competitors, it would continue to strengthen the market
position in the industry and expand the market share by
securing more consultancy engineering service contracts.

(d)

(e)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B RG w  Mor

(f)

(9)

ISP

The Investment Committee noted that the net profit of ISP
was slightly decreased because there were less projects
being awarded to the Group in the integrated services of
sound and communication systems segment.

The Investment Committee considered that ISP strived to
improve operation efficiency and profitability of business,
ISP planned to expand manpower capabilities and fleet
of machinery and equipment, which would enhance
resources to bid for future projects and strengthen the
market position in sound and communication system
services sector.

RMH Holdings

The Investment Committee noted that the revenue of
RMH Holdings decreased mainly due to decrease in
revenue from injection and intense pulse light procedures.
However, the revenue generated from consultation service
increased because the total number of patient visited
recorded increased.

The Investment Committee considered that RMH Holdings
intended to capitalise on business opportunities arising
from the continued demand for dermatological and
surgical services in Singapore, by seeking suitable and
strategic locations to expand the growing business and
to widen the customer pool and exploring to further grow
by capturing opportunities from markets with substantial
growth potential such as Hong Kong and the PRC.
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(h)

U]

)]

Wan Leader

The Investment Committee noted that an increase in
the acquisition cost of air and sea cargo space, listing
compliance costs, warehousing services related cost lead
to a loss of Wan Leader.

The Investment Committee considered that Wan Leader
would further enhance its service capabilities and
operational flexibility, offer better and more diverse
services 1o its customers and continue to exercise careful
cost controls to strengthen its competitiveness of Wan
Leader in the logistics industry.

Pacific Legend

The Investment Committee noted that Pacific Legend
recorded a loss mainly attributable to the decline in rental
revenue, the increase of selling and distribution costs and
administrative and other operating expenses.

The Investment Committee considered that the net
proceeds from the listing of shares of Pacific Legend was
utilised to expand the retail network by opening additional
retail stores and enhance the on-line shop and the
information technology capability and continue to explore
new opportunities to expand the distribution channels.

C&N Holdings

The Investment Committee noted that the cooling global
demand and the continuously escalating the United States
and the PRC trade war had disrupted world supply chains
in a blow to business investment and corporate profits
and affect the performance of C&N Holdings.

The Investment Committee considered that C&N Holdings
continued to increase service capacity through the
acquisition of new vehicles to maintain the growth in
the industry and enhanced overall competitiveness and
market share in Singapore.
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(k)

U]

(m)

Stream Ideas Group

The Investment Committee noted that the profit of
Steam Ideas Group decreased mainly due to decrease
in revenue, increase in selling and distribution costs and
administrative and other operating expenses.

The Investment Committee decided to dispose the
investment of Stream ldeas Group during the year and
seek for other potential investment opportunities.

Asia Television

The investment Committee noted that affected by the
dynamic changes in the macroeconomic environment and
policy changes in the PRC, together with the unstable
political and economic environment in Hong Kong, Asia
Television recorded a loss.

The Investment Committee decided to dispose the
investment of Asia Television during the year and seek for
other potential investment opportunities.

Bt SRR

The Investment Committee considered that the motor
vehicles market in the PRC remains huge which would
benefit Bt & 8E)R in long run. The Investment Committee
is optimistic to the future returns for the investment in B

AN AN
BREIR.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$862,000 (2018:
HK$927,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will monitor the exposure and take prudent
measures when necessary.

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio for the Group was
17.24% (2018: Nil) which represents the ratio of the Group’s
total interest-bearing liabilities to the total equity of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net assets of
approximately HK$69,214,000 (2018: HK$134,858,000). Except
for the margin payable of approximately HK$11,934,000 (2018:
Nil), the Group had no borrowings or long-term liabilities as at
31 December 2019.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s total issued shares
was 1,606,649,882 (2018: 1,606,649,882) of HK$0.02 each.
The Group had no debt securities or other capital instruments
as at 31 December 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 30 December 2019, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with Orient Securities Limited (“Orient”)
as placing agent where Orient agreed to place on a
best effort basis a maximum of 321,000,000 new shares
of the Company (“Placing Share”) of HK$0.02 each at
HK$0.1 per Placing Share to at least six placees who
were professional investors according to the definition of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The intended and
actual use of proceeds from the share placement was
for general working capital and investments. The placing
transaction was completed on 23 January 2020 and
a total of 321,000,000 shares were issued. The gross
and net proceeds were approximately HK$32,100,000
and HK$31,137,000 respectively. The net price was
approximately HK$0.097 per Placing Share. Details of
the Placing Share were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 30 December 2019 and 23 January
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

(b) Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated
5 November 2019 entered into between China Financial
Leasing Investments Limited (“CFL Investments”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and an independent
third party (the “Yacht Buyer”), CFL Investments disposed
of the yacht at a consideration of approximately
HK$5,100,000. The transfer of yacht would only be
completed when the consideration was fully settled. As
at 31 December 2019, only half of the consideration was
received from the Yacht Buyer and the settlement date of
the remaining balance was extended to 31 January 2020

by supplemental agreements.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the sale and
purchase agreement lapsed as the Yacht Buyer was
unable to settle the remaining balance. The deposit
received was forfeited and recognised as other income
by the Group after the end of the reporting period.

(c) After the coronavirus outbreak in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures has been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The
Group is paying close attention to the development of,
and the effect to business and economic activities caused
by, the coronavirus outbreak and evaluating its impact
on the Group. Given the uncertainties brought by the
coronavirus outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of its financial effect on the Group’s
financial position, cash flows and operating results at the

date of approval of this Annual Report.

(d) As at the date of approval of this Annual Report, the
realised losses and unrealised gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss from changes in fair
value on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
held as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately

HK$15,628,000 and HK$5,680,000 respectively.

Except for above mentioned, there were no material events

occurred after the financial report date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 December 2019, the Group disposed of the entire
issued share capital in Colour Charm Holdings Limited
(“Colour Charm”) at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$1,300,000. On the same day, the Group disposed of the
entire issued share capital in Affluent Crest Investments Limited
(“Affluent Crest”) at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$147,000. Further details of the disposal of Colour Charm
and Affluent Crest were disclosed in notes 30(a)(i) and 30(a)(ii)
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Except for above mentioned, the Group has not made any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year
under review.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 13 employees. Total
employee benefits expenses (excluding directors’ emoluments)
and directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2019 were approximately HK$5,583,000 and HK$1,700,000
respectively. The remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed
annually and employees are remunerated based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market practice.
No director or executive is involved in dealing with his/her own
remuneration.

In addition to salary payments, the Group has participated in
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% of each employee’s monthly relevant income subject to a
monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

The Company maintains a share option scheme, pursuant
to which share options are granted to selected directors,
employees or other eligible participants of the Group, with a
view to attract and retain quality personnel and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. During the year, there were no share options exercised,
granted, lapsed or cancelled. For details, please refer to the
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements under the
section headed “Share-based Payments”.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, listed securities of approximately
HK$66,322,000 (2018: Nil) were pledged to secure margin
payable. Except for above mentioned, there were no charges
on the Group’s assets.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements may affect the substantiality of the business.
The Group has allocated various resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has in material
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term
capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of
investments in listed and unlisted securities, which are exposed
to certain market risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk. The details are set out in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements under the section headed
“Financial Risk Management”.

W(O) China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises
from its investments in financial assets denominated in RMB.
The Group currently does not have any foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, there were no contingent liabilities noted by
the directors of the Company (2018: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the significant investments of
the Group are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis under the section headed “Equity Investments”.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to
which allowing shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Cayman
Islands, the articles of association of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company may
from time to time determine and pay to the shareholders such
interim dividends as it considers appropriate. The Board may
recommend the payment of final dividends which are required
to be approved by shareholders in general meetings.

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form
of any dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall

consider the following factors:

() the actual and expected financial results of the Group;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W Kooy Hr

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

(i)  the Group’s business strategies, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-
term growth aspect of the business;

(iv) the current and future operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1 5% 45 16 e

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”),
with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is committed
to maintaining good corporate governance standards and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of
disclosure, thereby enhancing shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of The
Corporate Governance Code And Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as its own code of corporate governance practices. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for the deviation from code provision A.4.1.

Code provision A.41 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. The independent non-executive directors
are not appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”).

Save as aforesaid and in the opinion of the directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, the Company was in compliance
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transactions by Directors as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group’s businesses, investment and strategic decisions and
performance. The Board delegated authority and responsibility
for day-to-day portfolio management of the Group to the
investment manager, while reserving certain key matters for
the approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of six
Directors including one executive Director, one non-executive
Director and four independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Director
Mr. Chan Chi Hang

Non-executive Director
Mr. Liu Hailong (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yip Ming

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward

Mr. Zhang Bin

Mr. Wang Ruiyang
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board and has met the recommended
practice under the CG Code for the Board to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive
Directors. The biographical information of the Directors are
set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors” on pages 44 to 49 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The major duties of the chairman of the Board are to provide
leadership to the Board and spearhead overall corporate
development and strategic planning. The executive Director
is responsible for implementation of decisions and strategy
approved by the Board and day-to-day management of
business. Therefore, a clear division of responsibilities is in
place and a balance of power and authority is ensured.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The four independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber, with academic and professional qualifications, and
extensive experience in several fields including accounting,
financial, management, etc. With their extensive experience,
they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of
the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have given their
annual confirmation of independence to the Company, and the
Company considered that they are independent under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for
a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles.

EEeRERNIEIT BN -« ¥£55 -
REHEMEKR HHABER EEE2
HERMBSFEHURRESTAEEBRAZ
B WERFELEERTAFHATE
ETeNEPRLE= D KERSE
NHHTEESZREEABTH - ESCER
AR FERFIMTA0EANZ [EERBEF

B —&h -

ITERYUTES
EFEEIRZIBZRERTRESTENR
FHEBREEERLRBRE - HTE
FRERTHEFTEHUE ZRRERE
REERBERE - Bt BESIELB
B - WERAE N RER R &

BYFHATES

MEBIIFERTESEREBZ AL
EEEENEXEE 2T |E(BRERN
git MBLREESZ)AFLELR - R
RREZEEER REHEZTEAX
WREITEBRE BB RMHR IE -

ERBYUIFATEFTCRE LHRAE
BIBMRZME » MEIBILIERARR
FEBEREL ARAFARRBREEERT
MALe

ERBYFNTEZZZEALEBEEE
H REHARBANGRESE -

BB M R AR D

THFE N EH



24

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1 5% 45 16 e

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has
held 22 meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include any matters in the agenda for all Board meetings and
are given sufficient time to review documents and information
relating to matters to be discussed during the Board meetings
in advance. For all regular Board meetings, the Board reviewed
the operation and financial performance, and reviewed and
approved the annual and interim results. And in order to ensure
all Directors could plan in advance their availability, a notice of
at least 14 days is given for regular meeting.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings are as follows:

Name of Directors

EEee3
BHE-_Z-AF+-A=+—RILEE -
ExeRBqT2ReE 2RBEEHE
KenmEEses e diRHEz
B MEATRHOER  UBELEHG
RESEEZ LAREECHBXHER
B -RESZSE s THESE SR
EFgRIEERMBRERE IRk
HEFERFHEE REREZBES
BB A REREEHEEE RERS
BEFGRESLUREBHM -

E=ZS R IHEABOT:

Attendance/Number of meetings

EERE HERE EFERE
Executive Directors HiTESE

Mr. Chan Chi Hang PR EE A& 22/22
Independent Non-Executive Directors — B 7 FE#iT7E FE

Mr. Yip Ming EHRLE 22/22
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BINE KA 22/22
Mr. Zhang Bin SRS & 22/22
Mr. Wang Ruiyang Fimls L& 22/22

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) of the Company and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to
have access to Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and has the right to seek external professional
advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
covering the Group’s business operations, policies and
procedures and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued
to Directors and senior management where appropriate, to
ensure awareness of best corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, during
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, the

Directors participated in the following trainings:

Name of Directors

EERERSEEEXRRE

EMEZECHTEESKRBREREARE
BEBEE BRLAEFERLEHARE
EEELEEEEZREAM - KEE
NEREBNTREMF  REFER
KT BR BT ANGB R BE - RARIFFAEIR
HEBLETRAIREMEREEREZ
RMEETES UHREFETLS
FRARESREHREFCREATRL
R - NBEEBRT  ARFEMES
=AREIRE R A K IES - ATELR
MEZRELERERTM -

REEFRHfzEE RZT-NF—
A—BE-ZT-AF+-_A=1+—HH
B EE22ETHIE:

Type of trainings

EEES BB
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Chan Chi Hang PR S E A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors HUHHITEE

Mr. Yip Ming HERELE B
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward MESE B
Mr. Zhang Bin SR ST A B
Mr. Wang Ruiyang FinlG k£ B
A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to A: HEHEEEBREZHATER HEHEK S

directors’ duties
B: reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy,
general business or directors’ duties etc.

B: REHBLE-

i 12
—MREBXREFBREES
WE - TWYREFHEH
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules, and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Ming (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward and
Mr. Zhang Bin.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. Moreover, the
committee will ensure that the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to
maintain high standards of corporate governance.

EEZR®
REZEER - TE——F+-A-+—
AL I8 IR AR Bl G a2 B A &0
- HEBREA=RBUIFNTES - I
EHELEREZESIR) BREX
ERRWSEEEN -

RELZBETIBRREERETEZIRE
MBRARER NEARERALTIAE
e HEBEUFATESZELEMN
EHEEIBEZAEZTRNESTSRM
CREBEERBRESS
REREREE BREEANZT/AETE
ZIEEN TS KMREAEFTGZX
EEREBIEENLEER

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting. E£ R IEZREESRTTIALHE - 24
Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee ZTE@ e HEHBELOT:

meetings are as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee members Attendance/Number of meetings
REZEGHNERRA HERE EB2REY
Mr. Yip Ming EHEE 1/1
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BDINE KA 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bin wW A 1/1
DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD EEgz2% it

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age (eighteen
years old or above), cultural and educational background,
qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Board diversity policy to ensure the effectiveness of the Board
diversity policy.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
28 June 2005 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Listing Rules, and currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Bin
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Yip Ming and
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward. The Remuneration Committee
is mainly responsible for the determination of the specific
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management
(including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments), making recommendations to the Board on the
matters relating to the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management, and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting.

Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee members

REZEE HEEEFEZLILHR
LTI WERESFEZTIEEE
ZHIME -

EEME
ARRRZEZRFANAZT/\BKALE
MEZEg WEREMRARILHBE
#E RERA-"RBIUFATES
BIRwEE(HFMEEE IR EHE
ENBMESREMANK - HIHNEZEE LR
EEEBEMAESELRSAEEE AR
Meda (BREYN G  RIKSEN R
METH) RARREHRESTAERE
BEZHFMERRNEE b EE R
B REL RN ERAZEFRAESE
REEZ ARBHIETZEFMAR
HRRELAREBAEZER -

FRFMHEZESHBTTIREE - %
MEEeeR 2HRFIRET:

Attendance/Number of meetings

FHESERERR HERE ER2REY
Mr. Zhang Bin wW SR AE 1/1
Mr. Yip Ming EHEL 1/1
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BDINE KA 1/1

AL R IR AR D
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such
auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and accounts
of the Group; and overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures. During the year under
review, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, RSM Hong Kong, is set out below:

BB B &
BERZESIZRAANINERRE 2R
T EEREBAE=SRHEEERR
Ko 3t e BE AT SNES AZ BB 2 3 M S BE AR 15
o URERZEFREME TR ERZ
EAEE: ERAKEZTHRFER
EUARKRR REEAKEZMBRSE
Ak AREERF  REOBEFE: B
/TR FARRR X EAN R R X 5T AD
SHHzMzEsm T

Fee paid/payable

e ENER

HK$’000

FE&xT

Audit services ZE RS 335

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 7 October 2002.
The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yip Ming and Mr. Zhang
Bin.

The terms of reference adopted by the Audit Committee are
aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee shall meet the external auditor to discuss
any area of concern during the audit or review. The Audit
Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not
only on the impact of standards, but also on the Listing Rules
and the legal requirements in the review of the Group’s interim
and annual reports.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings and
has reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 and audited annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2018 together with the auditor of the
Group. In the opinion of the Audit Committee, the preparation
of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and the Listing Rules.

Major work completed by the Audit Committee during the year
includes:

° reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim financial
information and annual financial statements;

° reviewed significant accounting and audit issues;

° reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications,
independence and performance;

° assisted the Board to evaluate on the effectiveness of
financial reporting procedures and internal control system;

o advised on material event or drawing the attention of the
management on related risks; and

o reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control.

Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are
as follows :

Name of Audit Committee members

TR BERZBERBITT2REHE A
BRAEEZZHMEHNAEEEE
E-NFARAR=THAERBEAZARE
RHAHREEURBE_T-N\F+_A
St HULEFEZREREFRE - &
REZEERA REXREIRENTAE
AestER R EmARR -

1

ERREENFATKNERTERE:

\

EWAEENER - RHPBER
REEHBRE

s EHIBGMAREFE:

o  EHIINEZBENER  BILHNH
MERR

s MHEFEHEMBRBAERA
MEERGHNARIE:

s HMEREMRHESAAFFERE
FIEBAR: &

EHASERREIENAREIER
S EEIE AL

BERZBgg@RchEABON:

Attendance/Number of meetings

BEREEENERSR HEXRE SR RE
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BINE KA 2/2
Mr. Yip Ming BT E 2/2
Mr. Zhang Bin SR SE A 2/2
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter
to be voted on by a show of hands.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company commits to place shareholders’ interests
as top priority and protect their rights as provided in the
Articles. Shareholders can visit the Company’s website
(www.cflg.com.hk) to gain access to the Company’s up-to-
date information. They are entitled to be given due notice to
attend all the general meetings of the Company, vote all the
resolutions (except for those which shareholders may have
conflict of interest and are required to abstain from voting) and
raise questions to the management on the Group’s status and
development plans.

Shareholders as duly registered holders of the ordinary shares
of the Company (“Members”) are also entitled to requisition to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. Details of the requirements and procedures are
as follows:

()  Any one or more Members holding not less than one
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may
send a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary to convene a general meeting;

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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(i) The requisition must be duly signed by the requisitionist,
specifying the requisitionist’s name, contact details and
the number of ordinary shares of the Company that the
requisitionist is holding and the matters proposed to be
discussed and transacted in the general meeting. The
requisition must be deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 2202, 22nd
Floor, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong;

(i)  The Company will verify the requisition and upon
confirming that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures
including the convening of a general meeting; and

(iv)  The general meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of the requisition.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
a general meeting, the requisitionist himself may convene a
general meeting in the same manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information
to its shareholders so that they can exercise their rights
in an informed manner. Information about the Company is
disseminated to the shareholders through:

()  delivery of interim and annual results and reports to all
shareholders;

(i) publication of announcements on interim and annual
results on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, and issuance of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

(i) BREVEHBKRKAEXEE 75|
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ABBARAE AR HE - UK
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(i) the general meeting of the Company is an effective (i) ARAFZBREASHEESHERE
communication channel between the Board and ZENBBERREE - Bt - &
shareholders. As such, the Board members attended EEERELR T NFRRE
the 2019 annual general meeting and other extraordinary FRERHMBRREREI RS AR
general meetings during the year to provide shareholders RIEHtBEBASBEGR N ERE 2 HE
with opportunities to understand the latest development MR HAME -
of the Group and raise questions.

The 2019 annual general meeting was held on 17 May 2019. —Z—NAFRRBFRER_ZT—NLF
The attendance record of the Directors at the general meetings T A++H&ET - EFRWMEAE 2 H
is set out below: R sk &5 T

Attendance/Number
Name of Directors of general meetings
EEnE HERE  BRAEXE
Executive Director HITEFE
Mr. Chan Chi Hang PR E1E T A& 1/1
Non-Executive Director FHHITEE
Mr. Liu Hailong' 288 EE —
Independent Non-Executive Directors 81 FE#77 & F
Mr. Yip Ming EREE 1/1
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward BINE S E 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bin SR M 58 A 1/1
Mr. Wang Ruiyang Fiml5 k4 1/1
1. Mr. Liu Hailong was appointed on 3 January 2020. 1. REEEERZZF—A=-HEZT -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were HE-ZT—NAF+-A=+—HIFE
no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional ARQFZZE W EE KK F -
documents.

3 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group’s accounts for each financial period and to ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Board
also ensures the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
confirm that they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties including:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually.

INTERNAL

As a part of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established by the Group to ensure that assets are
safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules
and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance
with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed.

However, the risk management and internal control systems
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed
to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management
approach to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The
operating units of the Group, as a first line of defence, identify,
evaluate, mitigate and monitor the risks, and report such
risk management activities to the Group’s management on a
regularly basis. The Group’s management, as the second line
of defence, provides support to the operating units and ensure
that the significant risks are properly managed and within the
acceptable range and report the situation to the Board at each
regularly scheduled meeting. The Board, as the final line of
defence, conducts an annual review of the overall effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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The Group does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and discussed the
risk management and internal control systems and no material
internal control failings, weaknesses or deficiencies have been
identified during the course of the review.

Based on the above, the Board were not aware of any areas
of concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally
effective and adequate including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has formulated its guidelines, with an
aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the confidentiality
requirement and fulfill the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB ko K IR W

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is pleased to demonstrate
its commitment to sustainable development. The Group
prepared the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “ESG Report”) pursuant to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide provided in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. This report covers
the Group’s operation in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2019 and discloses information on the Group’s
ESG management approach, strategy, priorities, objectives,
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations and the
Group’s performance.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) has overall
responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting
and has determined to integrate the ideas of environmental
and social responsibility into the Group’s operation and
management activities. The Board has reviewed and approved
this ESG Report.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group endeavours to create sustainable growth and
long-term value for its stakeholders, who mainly comprise
the Group’s employees and investors. The Group continues
to interact with the Group’s stakeholders on ongoing basis in
order to understand their views and collect their feedback.
The communication channels with stakeholders include annual
general meeting and staff meetings, etc.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner through its office management and daily
operation. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing, and implement green office practices to minimise the
impact of businesses on the environment.

Below practices are being implemented by the Group for
energy saving measure:

()  double-sided printing and copying, promoting using
recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance;

(i)  maintain the temperature at 25.5C, an optimal
temperature for comfort and energy savings;

(i) staff is recommended to switch off the lights and air
conditioning in the meeting room when it is not in use;

(iv)  widespread adoption of multi-function photocopiers (with
printing, scanning and fax functions); and

(v)  promote paperless environment by encouraging the use
of soft and electronic copy for the document instead of
hard copy.

Being an investment company, the Group is also aware
of the investment decisions and its potential impact to the
environment. Should the opportunity arise, the Group would
consider the risk of the projects and return dynamics as well
as the positive environmental effects it will have.
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EMISSION

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed
to protecting natural resources and the global environment,
Our commitment to emission reduction, energy and resources
conservation encompasses every aspect of the Group’s
operation, and the Group has complied with laws and
regulation related to environmental protection. In light of the
Group’s business nature, the operation of the Group does not
generate air, water or land pollutions or raise any significant
environmental issues.

Electricity consumed by the Group in principle place of
business is supplied by The Hongkong Electric Company,
Limited. The electricity consumption by the Group was
approximately 4,600 kWh.

Since the Group’s business does not involve manufacturing
activities, solid waste is mainly generated in daily office
operations without generation of hazardous waste. The Group
encourages employees to go paperless as much as possible
by limiting print outs as well as communicating via e-mail
as opposed to fax. Employees are also encouraged to re-
use paper and conserve paper usage by printing double-
sided to the extent practicable. During the year, the Group
used a total of approximately 100,000 pieces of paper in its
normal business operations of which approximately 85,000
pieces of paper were attributable to the printing of the
financial statements and materials related to general meetings
distributed to shareholders of the Company.

Regulatory compliance

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has undertaken various resources saving measures
to demonstrate the efforts in efficient use of resources in
the daily operations. Employees are encouraged to optimise
resources to help the Group to minimise the impact on
the environment and natural resources e.g. use of public
transportation. The Group owns a yacht and private motor
vehicles that run on petrol gas and gasoline. During the year,
a total of approximately 7,500 litres of petrol and gasoline
was used for the yacht and private motor vehicles. Although
non-significant amounts of water is consumed through the
business activities, the Group also encourages water saving by
driving water-saving habits and posting green messages in the
workplace to remind the employees to use water effectively.

THE ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

Since the Groups core operations are confined to the office
environment, the impact of the Group on the environment and
natural resources is not significant. It is mainly attributed to
the use of electricity, water and papers in the office. During
the year, the Group set a number of measures to reduce the
use of resources (refers to above sections “Environmental” and
“Emission” for details). In order to have further reductions on
the environmental impact and use of natural resources, the
Group will continue to make assessment and minimise the
environmental impact.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group provides the employees with fair and competitive
remuneration to motivate them. The Group may also at its sole
discretion, to grant share options to employees as a long-term
incentive aiming to motivate employees pursuing Group’s goal
and objectives. Employees and Directors can subscribe shares
of the Company based on their performance and contribution
to the Group.
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In addition, the Group’s policies and guidelines on recruitment
and promotion are formulated based on the principles that:

()  we are an equal opportunity employer;

(i) we make decisions to engagement relating to candidate’s
relevance experiences and qualifications and staff’s
promotion relating to performance; and

(i) working hours, leaves and other fringe benefits are in line
with industry practice and/or (if applicable) adjusted based
on experience, qualifications and seniority of staff.

A breakdown of the number of the Group’s staff and Directors
as at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

AN - RERBE R R E T 7 E A B R
SECEIVE

i) ZMERFrEReERE:

(i) EMRBEXREAEERLEERE

A FTHEARETIMRIALLRTE
VA4

(i) TITrEEFSr - BRE R EMFS REF
BAITEER — B K, (iEA)

BB BERRFEHE -

EA

RZZE-NF+-A=1+—8 A&BE
BETREZEABRRNOT

Staff Directors Total
BT = aF
Number (At 31 December 2019) A E(RZZT—NF 13 5 19
+=ZRA=+—8H)
The Group’s human resources practices are established to AL EFHRIE « wE K FEE - HaEF -
align with the applicable laws and regulations with regard ZFH T« FE# e ZHEME KR IR

to recruitment, compensation and dismissal, other benefits
and welfare, promotion, working hours, equal opportunities,
diversity and anti-discrimination. The Group embraces diversity
and provides employees with equal opportunity. Employees
are assessed and hired based on their capabilities, regardless
of their age, gender, nationality, cultural background, religious
belief, etc. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group complied with Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
labour related laws and regulations.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019

BHHEFERTEERERIEROAN
BRER AKERIZHL ARE
E%T”Q&A AEEEREEEDN

EENmEREFER - R B XL
%% RPENSH BB ETE R

CREBE-T-AFFT-A= + Shls
if AEBEETRFERESE
GBI (BB EDIF485%) K HAh 5 BN 1H 8
EBIROER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB ko K IR W

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group believes two-way communication is crucial to
employee engagement that drives job satisfaction and high
productivity. The Group has provided a platform for quality
communication between employees and management.
Promotion is executed on a fair and open basis and any form
of discrimination is not tolerated. Competent employees will be
considered for internal promotion in recognition of their efforts
and contribution when there is a job vacancy.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is subject to the health and safety requirements
of Hong Kong including, but not limited to, the Occupational
Health and Safety Ordinance. The Board believes that it is
in compliance with such requirements for the year ended
31 December 2019. The Group’s liability to the employees is
covered by insurance, which are required by law to take out.
The Board further confirmed that there was no material violation
of currently applicable safety regulations nor were there any
material employee safety issues involving the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, no fines or penalties for
non-compliance of safety laws and regulations were imposed
on the Group.

LABOUR STANDARD

No child or forced labour were employed in the Group’s
operations during the year which was in compliance with the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
in terms of employment management.

The Group lists specific requirements to hire the most suitable
candidate. All resume, original identification card, original
certificate should be first checked during interview. The Group
may also contact candidate’s preceded employer for reference.

The Group adopted a Board diversity policy under which the
Board composition includes members with different skills,
industry knowledge and experience, education, background
and other qualities without discrimination.
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During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case
regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour
laws.

LAWFUL GOVERNANCE

The Group has complied with the applicable employment-
related laws and regulations currently in force in Hong Kong
(including but not limited to those relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity diversity, anti-discrimination, other
benefits and welfare), as well as the Group does not employ
staffs who are below 18 years of age. The Group provides
such rights and benefits to the employees which are no less
than those required statutorily. No employees are paid less
than the minimum wage specified by the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Monthly
salary payments are made on time according to respective
employment contracts.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is an investment company. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group mainly engages in
investments in listed and unlisted equity securities. It does not
have any major supplier of products, raw materials or services.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

With integrity being a core part of the Group’s business ethics,
the Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such
as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
laws of Hong Kong). To maintain high standards of corporate
governance, the Group fulfills the commitment through abiding
by anti-corruption policies and guidelines, such as acceptance
of gifts and conflicts of interest. To live up to the anti-corruption
commitment, whistleblowing policy is also formulated by the
Group. The employees of the Group are encouraged to report
any suspected misconduct and violation of rules. Investigation
work for whistleblowing reports is handled with strict
confidentiality under all circumstances to preserve anonymity.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had not
been charged for any corruption within the Board, its senior
management and its staff, as well as its subsidiaries and their
employees, during their employment.

The Group, together with the current Board, gives the utmost
priority to regulatory compliance. The Board advocates a high
level of independence so as to make independent judgements.
Therefore, the Company has appointed four independent non-
executive Directors. In selecting the Board members, the
Company already considered the experience, knowledge and
background of all four independent non-executive Directors that
can contribute to the diversity and caliber of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group always endeavours to serve the community and
therefore highly respects its corporate social responsibilities.
The Group has also supported charity work/organisations/
non-governmental organisation by participating in various
activities or making donation in the total sum of approximately
HK$808,000. For the sake of social betterment, the Group will
also identify charitable, non-profit or educational institutions
and foundations that share its beliefs.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

R RE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Chi Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 44, was appointed
as executive Director of China Financial Leasing Group Limited
(the “Company”) on 20 July 2018. Mr. Chan is a holder of
Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1998. Mr.
Chan is currently a licensed person and a responsible officer
to carry out type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”). Mr. Chan
has approximately 19 years of relevant experience in financial
industry, including asset management and providing investment
advisory services. Mr. Chan is the director and type 9 (asset
management) responsible officer of BG Asset Management
Limited (“BG Asset”) (formerly known as Jaala Asset
Management Limited) since June 2017 and responsible for
the investment portfolio management. BG Asset is a licensed
corporation under the SFO with type 9 (asset management)
to provide asset management service to the clients. Mr. Chan
also served as chief operating officer of Gold Mountains Asset
Management Limited from July 2016 to May 2017, director of
Partners Asset Management (HK) Limited from January 2015 to
July 2016, and fund manager of CLSA Alternative Investment
Management Limited from January 2007 to April 2011.

Mr. Chan has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
Mr. Chan is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
in every three years. The remuneration of Mr. Chan is
HK$900,000 per annum which is determined by the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) with reference to
his respective qualifications and experiences, his respective
duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he held
any directorships in other listed public companies in the past
three years. Mr. Chan does not have any relationships with
other Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Hailong (“Mr. Liu”), aged 49, was appointed as non-
executive Director of the Company and Chairman of the board
of Directors on 3 January 2020. Mr. Liu possessed years of
experience in electronic sales, special electronic commerce
operation and management. Mr. Liu is currently the chairman
of the boards of directors of TR ANEFBEFEEKRHE
BRARF] and ZHKREMFEFEBRHERDE]. Mr. Liu is
mainly responsible for, including but not limit to, operation,
management, financial, merchant and administration. Mr. Liu
has been a chairman of the board of directors of NZHEE
FiHE AR QAT from January 2004 to December 2013. Mr.
Liu was appointed as council member of Asia-Pacific Financial
Council from October 2015 to October 2016, and vice officer
of THARFAFTEERRBHAZEENEZE T since 2018.
Mr. Liu is currently a chairman of the board of directors of
China Electronics Holdings Inc., a company listed on Nasdaq
with ticker symbol “CEHD”.

Mr. Liu has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, Mr. Liu is subject to retirement at the
Company’s next annual general meeting and being eligible
offer himself for reappointment. Thereafter, Mr. Liu is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years.
The remuneration of Mr. Liu shall be determined by the Board
at a later stage with reference to the recommendation of
the remuneration committee of the Company according to
his respective qualifications and experiences, his respective
duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he
held any directorships in other listed public companies in the
past three years. Mr. Liu does not have any relationships with
other Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yip Ming (“Mr. Yip”), aged 65, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on
19 December 2014. Mr. Yip is a member of The Institute of Fire
Engineers. Mr. Yip had worked in the Hong Kong Fire Services
Department for about 30 years and retired in 2009 at the
position of Senior Divisional Officer. During his tenure, Mr. Yip
had been seconded to attend professional and management
training at The Michigan State Police Training Centre, United
States of America in 1997, Fire Services Collages, England in
2003 and Peking University in 2006. Mr. Yip has also been
appointed as the Honorary Aides De Camp to the Governor of
Hong Kong from 1994 to 1997 and to the Chief Executive of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from 1998 to 2001.
After his retirement in 2009, Mr. Yip worked as consultant in
the Pyrotek Technology Limited until May 2014.

Mr. Yip has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, Mr. Yip is subject to retirement by rotation at
least once in every three years. The remuneration of Mr. Yip
is HK$200,000 per annum which is determined by the Board
with reference to his respective qualifications and experiences,
his respective duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yip does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he
held any directorships in other listed public companies in the
past three years. Mr. Yip does not have any relationships with
other Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 65,
was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 26 June 2015. Mr. Tsang is a holder of a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce from Curtin University, Australia and a
Master Degree in Business Accounting from Monash University,
Australia. Mr. Tsang is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA
Australia. Mr. Tsang had held senior positions in a number of
Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Tsang has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, Mr. Tsang is subject to retirement at the
Company’s next annual general meeting and being eligible offer
himself for re-appointment. Thereafter, Mr. Tsang is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
remuneration of Mr. Tsang is HK$200,000 per annum which
is determined by the Board with reference to his respective
qualifications and experiences, his respective duties and
responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsang does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he held
any directorships in other listed public companies. Mr. Tsang
does not have any relationships with other Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

BREXETEEE]D 65K N_T—
AERNAZTANAREZERARAE
MIFMITES - ERENBRMNBIERES
BGRB8 £ 2 M OB M R MRS
BEAXETRIEM BRETRE
BEFMAGZERS B MRIMNE A
NEzgBE - RRANZHEHBEBLTA
AEESRBAL

BREERNRARABER IR LI ER
EFMZZEE - REAY > BELERA
RARR TEERRBFRGLERE A
NMEEBRBEEE - K BREEAE
PE=FHETE R GREZHMH
/BHEF200,0008 7T © B4 2 FH B IH
EXZeR2EHEFELER RART
ZBENMBG ARBZRBMBERTT

PR EXWEEI  BEREBMBRART
HEMBRAREEEMEMBL - R
Hif ERARAREEES - QoA H
ARRHEMBESE SREEE 2%
% P BRI o

AL R IR A E

THFE N EH



43

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

R RE

Mr. Zhang Bin (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 47, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 3 August
2018. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from Shandong University in 2010. Mr. Zhang
is a senior economist. Mr. Zhang is also a qualified secretary
of the board of directors of Shenzhen Stock Exchange and a
qualified independent director of Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Mr. Zhang has extensive years of experience in management of
industrial enterprise, securities management and administrative
management. Mr. Zhang has been an independent director of
Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Limited (@ company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from March 2015 to August 2015
and an independent director of Nuode Investment Co., Limited
(@ company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange) from July 2015
to January 2018. Mr. Zhang has been a director of management
department, office supervisor, head of securities department and
officer of securities affairs of Kairuide Holding Co., Limited (a
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange) (formerly known
as Shandong Demian Incorporated Company) from 2002 to 2013.
Mr. Zhang has been a deputy general manager and a secretary
to the board of directors from July 2013 to May 2019, and the
non-independent director from August 2013 to May 2019.

Mr. Zhang has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, Mr. Zhang is subject to retirement at the
Company’s next annual general meeting and being eligible offer
himself for re-appointment. Thereafter, Mr. Zhang is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
remuneration of Mr. Zhang is HK$200,000 per annum which
is determined by the Board with reference to his respective
qualifications and experiences, his respective duties and
responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zhang does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he held
any directorships in other listed public companies in the past
three years. Mr. Zhang does not have any relationships with
other Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

R RE

Mr. Wang Ruiyang (“Mr. Wang”), aged 32, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company on
3 September 2018. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Biological Engineering from Zhejiang Gongshang University
in 2010. Mr. Wang has experience in human resources,
administration, financial management and sales experience.
Mr. Wang has been a sale manager of Guangzhou Shunzhou
Logistics Co., Limited* from July 2010 to January 2016 and
statutory representative of Wenzhou Hangchen Crafts Co.,
Limited* from March 2016 to January 2018. Mr. Wang is
currently an executive director of Meehaa International Industry
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* since March 2018.

Mr. Wang has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, Mr. Wang is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once in every three years. The remuneration of Mr.
Wang is HK$200,000 per annum which is determined by
the Board with reference to his respective qualifications and
experiences, his respective duties and responsibilities with
the Company, the Company’s performance and the prevailing
market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he held
any directorships in other listed public companies in the past
three years. Mr. Wang does not have any relationships with
other Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

*

For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EHRGHREE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Financial Leasing Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term
capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of
investments in listed and unlisted securities. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 20 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 66.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$808,000.

TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“SO Scheme”) on 12 January 2012. The purpose of the SO
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the SO Scheme include, without
limitation, any persons who are employees, officers, agents,
consultants or representatives of the Group. The SO Scheme
became unconditional upon The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting on 13 January
2012 the approval of the listing of and the permission to deal
in the shares falling to be issued pursuant to the exercise of
any options to be granted under the SO Scheme and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, shall remain in force for 10
years from the adoption date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the SO Scheme and the other
scheme (if any) in any 12-month’s period shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the
time being. Any further grant of share options to any eligible
participant in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the SO Scheme and the other schemes (if
any) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue (the “10% Limit") as at 12 January 2012,
being the date of passing the resolution by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting approving and adopting
the SO Scheme. The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the 10% Limit at
any time in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the SO Scheme and other schemes
(if any) shall not exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time. The making of an
offer to any Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Directors who or
whose associate is a proposed grantee of the share options).

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the offer) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month’s period, are subject to
the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in
respect of less than the number of shares which are offered
provided that such number is clearly stated in the duplicate
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such
eligible participants and received by the Company together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 (which shall
not be later than 21 days from the offer date). The exercise
price of the share options is determinable by the Directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

On 25 May 2018, the share option limit was refreshed by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting that maximum of 133,964,988 options convertible to
133,964,988 shares at HK$0.02 each can be issued. As at
the date of this annual report, 133,964,988 options convertible
to 133,964,988 shares at HK$0.02 each can be issued,
representing approximate 6.95% of the total number of issued
shares as at the date of this annual report.
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During the year, no Share Options were exercised, granted,
lapsed or cancelled. For details, please refer to the note 29 to
the consolidated financial statement under the section headed
“Share-based Payments”.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
162 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, approximately HK$264,673,000 in the share premium
account and approximately HK$19,444,000 in the reserve
arising from capital reduction of the Company completed on
10 December 2012, is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Hang

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Liu Hailong'

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yip Ming

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward

Mr. Zhang Bin

Mr. Wang Ruiyang

1. Mr. Liu Hailong was appointed on 3 January 2020.

Pursuant to article 88(1) of the Articles, Mr. Tsang Chung Sing
Edward and Mr. Zhang Bin will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting (“2020 AGM”).

Pursuant to Article 87(3) of the Articles, Mr. Liu Hailong will
be subject to re-election and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election at the 2020 AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 313 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
No Director proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company and the Director’'s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares (as defined in the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

EEZBRBEN
BR-_T_FTERRAFAGBEEET
LEFE BMEEAKETITAR —F
NERNEE2BRTOXE B BRI
HARAKIEZRBEEL

EERAEAEERBEZEA
X7 RERGHNZEAER
ARTMBATMET LA M A REE
% AFAREEREFZMESRA
PE R RE R AR - WRER
RENTABSHTFRZEARS - B
RAH -

EERKROZzER
R-F— n¢+:ﬂz+—a~wﬁ§$
RAAAEETRABRAA AR

HM£lm%ﬁ % & B E & B XV
M)zt - HEARN (EEREEHFLS
BEiOI(TEHLBEERND) RESFF -
HEEREEFRHAEKOEIS2MELA
ZERERE 2B RN zERIAR
SRR E T AR BB 8% AT Ek . ET B AT

AE%Lﬁ #x%%ﬁ*?%a%ﬁ
IR/ ERXFTZERIRE ©

TR SRR AR HE

SHFE R



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EHRGHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK

As at 31 December 2019, according to the information publicly R-Z—hAF+-_A=+—H KRB
disclosed, persons who had interests or short positions in the FEBEZEX BEZESLHEEMNE
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in 33615 E EHEF 2 ZEMATE - EARE
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, Z B LIERERMDEAERZI AR Z A

are set out below: TEAAT
Approximate
percentage
of the
Company’s
Number of total number
ordinary of issued
Name of shareholders Type of interests Position shares held shares
AL F
FEEER ERTROEH
IR R E B & #5385l ¥ L4 BAOBDH
THRAREFTBEETEBERD Beneficial owner Long 338,000,000 21.04%
BRAF (‘ZRKREFE
(Note 1)
TRRNEFTBEFEBRNG EmEAA o)
ERARI(ZRANEZR]
(Bt 1)
Liu Hailong (Note 1) Interest of controlled  Long 338,000,000 21.04%
corporation
2178 58 (M9 511) REH AT 2 ER oy
Talent Capital Holding Beneficial owner Long 335,000,000 20.85%
Group Co., Limited
(“Talent Capital”) (Note 2)
Talent Capital Holding EmEAA e
Group Co., Limited
([Talent Capitall)(Kf #%2)
Lin Dailian (Note 2) Interest of controlled Long 335,000,000 20.85%
corporation
RA B (B 5E2) REH AT 2 ER oy
National Investments Fund Beneficial owner Long 84,800,000 5.28%
Limited
National Investments Fund ExBEEA E
Limited
6 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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Notes:

1. According to the information available to the Company, 338,000,000
shares are held by LRI KE
THKNE is wholly owned by Liu Hailong, the chairman of the
Board and non—exeoutive Director of the Company. Accordingly, Liu
Hailong is deemed to have interests in the 338,000,000 Shares.

in the capacity of beneficial owner.

2. According to the information available to the Company, 335,000,000
shares are held by Talent Capital in the capacity of beneficial owner.
Talent Capital is wholly owned by Lin Dailian. Accordingly, Lin Dailian
is deemed to have interests in the 335,000,000 Shares.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has paid/payable HK$400,000
as investment management fee to Avia Asset Management
Limited, the investment manager of the Company for the
provision of investment management services to the Company.
The above transaction constitutes a de minimis continuing
connected transaction which is exempted from reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing
Rules.

During the year, UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited, China
Tonghai Securities Limited and | Win Securities Limited, the
custodians (collectively the “Custodians”) of the Company
provided custody services in relation to the securities and
cash which the Company may from time to time deposit with
the Custodians. The fees payable by the Company to the
Custodians for the services constitutes de minimis continuing
connected transaction which is exempted from reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or existed during the year.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with
the requirements of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Tsang Chung Sing Edward (as the chairman), Mr. Yip Ming and
Mr. Zhang Bin.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offers itself for
re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the 2020
AGM for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Liu Hailong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T or 4% B R

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123
F+85225987230

www.rsmhk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 66 to 161, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong

RSM

BRSNS HAR
HEEERTE _1/\5%
MEZH -+

E5E +8522598 5123
HH +85225987230

www.rsmhk.com

BTETREAEEEARATEZRRR

(MHAESFETMRLZBERRQT)

=

B EAIENRFEOEI61ENTE T
BMEEEEERAR(ERR ) M EKEB
REI(GHEIERE D SRS MBHRE - It
HEMBBRREER_ZE-NF+-A
=t HNREMBRAREEEZA
FFENFEaEa REM2mkamk
HARAEPRNGERBETRERNLE
BUBHREANET(BEREIZSFEERM

Z)-

BPRR ZEHEAMBERERERES
Beitmag(EESMAS)EM
MABABMBREEA(BEMBEREE
AHEEmMT SRR SXEER_-F
—NF+ZA=+—BNEGEEFBMRR
LRERHEZALFENGEAEMBHERERR
HABRIRE YDRBEBRAGD
MEBEREZRRE -

TR SRR RAE 50

% U



60

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T or 4% B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. The key audit matter we identified is the fair
value measurement of unlisted equity investments.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

FEETEEGE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMREBFARNAEERRESEE

Fair value measurement of unlisted equity
investments

FETRAREZQFENE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FE2HEA B MRME20 -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s unlisted
equity investments categorised as level 3 fair
value measurement amounted to approximately
HK$12,270,000. Determination of the fair value
involves significant management estimation, in
particular the selection of unobservable inputs.
As the unlisted equity investments are measured
at fair value at each reporting date, the fair value
measurement has significant impact on the financial
performance and position of the Group.
RZE-NWF+_A=+—H0  BEEIBERSE
=B IEETIRAR E 4 /312,270,000 7T ° 2
VTEZEESREREREMT  LEHETAH
R ABEZHKE - ANFLTRAKRE TN & ®
EHHMEATEFZ  ATEFEY B55EZ
MBRARMAEERTE -

Our procedures in relation to fair value measurement
of unlisted equity investments included:
BPMIELTRAREZ AT EAERETNIEFB
i

— Assessing whether the valuation methodologies
adopted by management were appropriate;
— MEEREMRMGEREZEE M

— Testing the evidence supporting the
unobservable inputs utilised in the level 3 fair
value measurement; and

— AEARE=ZEBRARATFEFEFREATAERH
ANEZXFZEE &

— Evaluate the adequacy of the level 3 fair value
measurement disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

— HERGAPBBREZEZERATEER
B EREM o

B E A R A R AR G
THFE N EH
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all the information in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B S A% BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE #
AR

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use e

of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content e

of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding e

the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

FHEH ST HRE
=

AEEFRRAGHRAOA DM
AR & 54 AR B B A
o

HESRABBEKERSTER

BEEELER  YRIEMES E’J
HiRE BEEAGFAEEEER
BRBEENEATETE WA
BREHY EBESEMFELERT
EEEARE - WHRMRBGFEE
ATNRETEM - HMIBR MRS
FRBEIBREMBEMERPOIEEA
BT IMMEBEELR  AEE]
BMWER - RPINGEwRIIERE
ERHMBEBRTESHNENER
Foo AR RREBHKIFRAJRES
B BEEELBELE -

AR AMBREANERERS
A HEBLAR  BEEREER
AREEMBEHRREETHRBM
ARXHREH -

B BEREABEEAEHEBNM
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EERREME -

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among BRI EZZE e (HdhaE)EH
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and FTE|&E - BT H R E KR HIRE
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 17/8# * Z S X B EERMEFTHEHRE
in internal control that we identify during our audit. H 28 Bl B P B 12 ) B A ) B KR PA o

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T or 4% B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matter. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants

26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R S S TR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—BILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
bg=s FERT FAT
Revenue WA 8 1 18
Other income H b A 9 - 30
Net loss on financial assets at fair F@EFIEAFEFEZ
value through profit or loss VG EERBEFR (47,463) (5,146)
(47,462) (5,098)
Administrative expenses TR (18,688) (22,030)
Loss from operations REEE (66,150) (27,128)
Finance costs B & A 10 (682) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1 i & A 7 4 25 1,149 —
Loss before tax RR B B 18 (65,683) (27,128)
Income tax expense FriSfim = 11 — —
Loss for the year attributable AT EEAEEEE
to owners of the Company ] 12 (65,683) (27,128)
Other comprehensive income FEHM2E W% & MR
for the year, net of tax BE
Item that may be reclassified to  AJE# 7 EE/Em ZIHE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BMEBINEG 2 EHERE
translating foreign operations 39 (23)
Total comprehensive income ZARATREEAEBEEEZSR
for the year attributable to HUYAERE
owners of the Company (65,644) (27,151)
Loss per share BREE 16
Basic (HK cents per share) E AR RBW) 4.09 1.96
Diluted (HK cents per share) s (g aROs) 4.09 1.96
6 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A B8 SR DL AR

At 31 December 2019
T—-hNF+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NE —N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WENEE 17 4,198 6,853
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 714 —
Financial assets at fair value BREBRIEANTFEFEZ
through profit or loss MBEE 20 12,270 14,518
17,182 21,371
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value BRBRIEATFEFEZ
through profit or loss MBEE 20 68,867 111,843
Deposits and prepayments e hBENFKIE 21 188 1,213
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRESEHR 862 927
69,917 113,983
Current liabilities RBaE
Deposit received BRES 22 2,550 —
Margin payable and accruals JERIREBEES MEFER 23 14,619 496
Lease liabilities HEARE 24 496 —
17,665 496
Net current assets REBEEFEE 52,252 113,487
Total assets less current HWEERRBERS
liabilities 69,434 134,858
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEARE 24 220 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 69,214 134,858
g <&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 3 IR UL A&

At 31 December 2019
T—-hNF+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
bg=s FE T FHETT
Capital and reserves EAREBEABEELRR
attributable to owners of the f#&
Company
Share capital fi% Z< 25 32,133 32,133
Reserves & 27 37,081 102,725
TOTAL EQUITY B R 69,214 134,858
Net asset value per share BRFEEE
(HK cents per share) (B BKR) 28 4.31 8.39

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2020 and R-ZE-_ZTF=HZ=+ /X ,@%%?ﬁt

are signed on its behalf by: HERBHUTEERERESE
Chan Chi Hang Liu Hailong
BR & 1E 258
Executive Director Non-executive Director
HITEFE BB ITEFE
60 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR RE i 5 B R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

Foreign
Capital Share currency
Share Share reduction option  translation Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
EXHR BRE hEBRE
Rx  RGEE ffE 1] R 2ithE  AER

(note 25)  (note 27(0)l)  (note 27(b)(i))  (note 27(b)ii)  (note 27(b)(iv))
(Mstos)  (HEzzoro)i)  (FHsE2rmo)) (B sEorm)i)  (FsE27(0)(v)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
T T T Tin ThT Tér  Tirn

At 1 January 2018 RZZE-\E-A-A 21,843 194,740 19,444 1,583 51 (154,292) 83,369
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2ERALE - - - - 23) (@7128)  (27.151)
Issue of shares on placements (note 25(a)) A & B % 7 Rk 13 (Hf ££25(a)) 9,740 66,685 - - - - 76425
Share issue expenses RHETHE - (1910) - - - - (1910)
Issue of shares under share REERETEET

option scheme (note 25(0)) R (Bt 525(0) 550 5,158 - (1583) - - 4125
Changes in equity for the year EFRERY 10,290 69,933 - (1,589) 23) (07128) 51489
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\E+ZR=+-H

1 January 2019 k=-ZE-n&E-A-H 32,133 264,673 19,444 - 28 (181,420) 134,858
Total comprehensive income and FEZAMABER

changes in equity for the year Eng - - - - 39 (65,683 (65,644)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=1+-8 32133 264,673 19,444 - 67 (247103 69,214
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A va B
HAaBEeRER
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NE+-A=+—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 TR FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BREIATE B (65,683) (27,128)
Adjustments for: FUATHEEEDAR:
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BMERXETE
equipment 17 2,525 1,668
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 18 1,452 -
Finance costs BEK A 10 682 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries KT AR = 30(a) (1,149) -
Net loss on financial assets at fair value  FBERR A FEFEY
through profit or loss NBEEBBFE 47,463 5,146
Operating loss before working capital KEBESBBAILEESR
changes (14,710) (20,314)
Purchases of financial assets at fair BEEBBEREATEFEZ
value through profit or loss MIEERE (93,374) (194,088)
Proceeds from disposals of financial HEBREREATENEZ
assets at fair value through profit or MBEEMEHIE
loss 90,860 140,995
Decrease in deposits and prepayments 1% & & 815 538 W 484 13
Increase in accruals et 2 RN 2,212 97
Increase in margin payable JE R 78 & 12 0 11,934 -
Cash used in operations KEFARE (2,594) (73,297)
Interest on margin payable ERHRBEEF B (501) -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE (181) -
Net cash used in operating activities RETHAR e FE (3,276) (73,297)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BEKRE
equipment 17 (21) (6,121)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKERR 30(a) 1,447 —
Increase in deposit received Bz e Em 2,550 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFEHHE,/(FTR)K
investing activities e FHE 3,976 6,121)

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HAaBEeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares on I ERETRMZME A
placements = 76,425
Proceeds from issue of shares under REBRESEBRTROZABRE
share options scheme = 4125
Share issue expenses paid B BRHETHY = (1,910)
Principal elements of lease payments HEABREHIMWAR (1,079) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEBMG/(FTR)RLFE
financing activities (1,079) 78,640
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B¢ RREZSEBHFERYD
EQUIVALENTS (379) (778)
Effect of foreign exchange changes INEEB R 314 787
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B-HZzBR&RELEEER
AT 1 JANUARY 927 918
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-A=+—-HBzR&RRLEERA
AT 31 DECEMBER 862 927
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH BeRBREEEBEDIM
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE & 862 927
o] <
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is Room 2202,
22nd Floor, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in short
to medium term capital appreciation by investing in a
diversified portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted
securities on a general perspective. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. B EE(E)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs BEASHMAEEEHRASEER
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the FEHRE R ENLA] TIREHN
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides ZETHARKEIEEVBRSE
information on any changes in accounting policies AR o W EE3H T E 41K FE A B AR
resulting from initial application of these developments SEEHITERMNABKBTS
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the SHHAE AR A IS R A 2 #TA] R A&
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these BRI EAMEANSTTREEZHE
consolidated financial statements. K} o
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RMFIREETERMY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BwEER
STANDARDS
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERHFIRKBITETBHEK
iﬁ”‘ﬁﬂﬂ
The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16 BEGHAIAGE MM —IEH
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs EI’J%T/% M mELER (BB
that are first effective for the current accounting B EEAF6 HE) R
period of the Group. ETEBUBREELN &
A IRARE AR EE
BIRER -
Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments Br & B B 1% & A B 1658
have had a material effect on how the Group’s IN - REBREREAVBRES
results and financial position for the current or AISAT BRI AR B Rk
prior periods have been prepared or presented. Y2 EE KB R I &
The Group has not applied any new standard or BEAXE  c AEBEWREAR
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current At RN AR E BB A FT
accounting period. I ERIRERE -

e 4 L6 54 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 /N 2>
7R o BB R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NE+-A=+—BLEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, Hong Kong (SIC) Interpretation 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and Hong Kong
(SIC) Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
HKFRS 16 introduced a single accounting model
for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases,
except for leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore,
HKFRS 16 did not have an impact on leases where
the Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements brought forward from HKAS 17 are
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. KMFIIREEITERY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING % 2R (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERHAIRKEBIEBHE
(Continued) ] E 2R (4])
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB BHEERE16% -
5(E)
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from REBE -_ZT-NF—H—H
1 January 2019. The Group has elected to use the RERERADEMBRELEL
modified retrospective approach and has therefore F169% - AEBEDREFHAKL
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application BT E - Bt Ea R ES
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity WEFHERRB-ZT—NF
at 1 January 2019. Comparative information has not —A—BZHVERERN A
been restated and continues to be reported under B EMTTEY - WE
HKAS 17. BREBEEBSAER BT/
£,
Further details of the nature and effect of the EABTESHEREHHNE
changes to previous accounting policies and the REBIAKMERBEEEN
transition options applied are set out below: EHE—HFBEEHOT
() New definition of a lease () HEBFEE
The change in the definition of a lease mainly HETENEFHFEHE
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 THIEN A B
defines a lease on the basis of whether a ISR E LR 1655 1R
customer controls the use of an identified asset BEFPEAGEX —HBR
for a period of time, which may be determined M I 2 R Rl & E R R
by a defined amount of use. Control is R(ErmEEEREE
conveyed where the customer has both the E)MEHEEEHER -
right to direct the use of the identified asset EEFPBEREEREHER
and to obtain substantially all of the economic EEMNRAEARKRZA
benefits from that use. BHEGSEBALILE
FMzaby - BIRREAIZES
& o
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ok M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. %
%

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

() New definition of a lease (Continued)
The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
were entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019. For contracts entered into
before 1 January 2019, the Group has
used the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue
to be accounted for as leases under HKFRS
16 and contracts previously assessed as non-
lease service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 /N 2>
7R o BB R M RE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NE+-A=+—BLEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)
When recognising the lease liability for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied the incremental borrowing
rates of the relevant Group entities at the date
of initial application. The incremental borrowing
rate applied is 6.87%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

() elected not to apply the requirements of
HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
to leases for which the remaining lease
term ends within 12 months from the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or before
31 December 2019;

(I excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application; and

() relied on the assessment of whether
leases are onerous by applying HKAS 37
as an alternative to an impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S A Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(1)

Annual Report 2019

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

78 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAAFT RRIETERBEY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 7% -3
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERHAIRKEBIEBHE
(Continued) ] E 2R (4])
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB BHEERE16% -
& (/&)
(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) AT R BE
(Continueq) FE(E)
The following table reconciles the operating TERAEHINR-E—\F
lease commitments as disclosed in note 32 +ZA=+—BEERE
to the consolidated financial statements as at & B 7% 2k Y TE32/9 &%
31 December 2018 to the opening balance EHEAERER-_T—N
for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January F-A—HERNHEESR
2019: & B HR ) 4 R 2 31 B
HK$'000
FH&ET

Operating lease commitments disclosed as R=ZE—/\F+=-A=+—H

at 31 December 2018 B A8 T & R 1,568
Less: commitments relating to lease W ERRERNME2EE
exempt from capitalisation: N
— short-term leases and other leases — RHEIFH & K FIsR7E B
with remaining lease term ending on RZZE—h&F+=H
or before 31 December 2019 =+—H=ZAEMm
ZHMEE (263)
Less: total future interest expense W R RF EF S B (103)

Present value of remaining lease payments, % F1% £ (& F| K BLIR ~

discounted using the incremental BRTHENFTBRAELR

borrowing rate and lease liabilities “E-NF—HA—HB®ER

recognised as at 1 January 2019 ZHEBE 1,202
Of which are: B

Current lease liabilities mEHERE 433

Non-current lease liabilities EMBEEAR 769

1,202

e 4 L6 54 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S A Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2019

RE-Z-AF+=

A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(1)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to the lease
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December
2018.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. KMFIIREEITERY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING % 2R (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERHAIRKEBIEBHE

(Continued) ] E 2R (4])
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB BHEERE16% -

& (/&)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) AT R BE

(Continueq) FE(E)
The following table summaries the impacts TR AR AR E B B S
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s SR F16TR Y AL E
consolidated statement of financial position: BHRGEMBRARZ

-2

Effects of adoption of HKFRS 16
RNEERBREENZCR 2T E

Line items in the consolidated Carrying
statement of financial position amount as at Carrying
impacted by the adoption of 31 December  Recognition amount as at
HKFRS 16 2018 of leases 1 January 2019
SR NE B M S S 2R 1657 RZZE—N\F RZZE—NF
TE ARG MBI RKRER +TZA=+—H —A—RAZz
2 FRHEE HE R FREE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FHETT
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets f{# FA#EE E — 1,202 1,202
Liabilities =K
Lease liabilities HE&R — 1,202 1,202

R AR IR A 3
THFE N EH
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ok M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. %
%

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i) Impact of the financial results and cash flows
of the Group
After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. This
does not result in a significant impact on the
reported loss from operations in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, as compared to
the results if HKAS 17 had been applied during
the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the Group as a lessee is required to split
rentals paid under capitalised leases into
their principal element and interest element
(note 30(b)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows and operating
cash outflows respectively. Although total
cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of
HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant
change in presentation of cash flows within
the consolidated statement of cash flows (note
30(c)).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ik M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. %
%

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i) Impact of the financial results and cash flows
of the Group (Continued)
The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
on the Group’s financial results and cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2019, by
adjusting the amounts reported under HKFRS
16 in these consolidated financial statements to
compute estimates of the hypothetical amounts
that would have been recognised under HKAS
17 if this superseded standard had continued
to apply in 2019 instead of HKFRS 16, and
by comparing these hypothetical amounts
for 2019 with the actual 2018 corresponding
amounts which were prepared under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S A Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. KM RKETERY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING % &2 Al (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERHAIRKEBIEBHE
(Continued) ] E 2R (4])
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB BHEERE16% -
(&)
(i) Impact of the financial results and cash flows (i) #7KE BB 7 AR
of the Group (Continued) EnBIZFZE(E)
2019 2018
ZE-nF —E)N\E
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to
Add back: operating  Hypothetical Compared to
Amounts HKFRS 16 lease as if amounts amounts
reported depreciation under for 2019 reported for
under and interest HKAS 17 as if under 2018 under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
Mk
ERLEHE
2fEite®  ZB-AE  EH-Z-)\E
REEE mE: (BuORE 2RRLHE EReHE

MBRE BRUBHE ERE (EORE LB (RE
BB E16%  RAFORTH  EAFTH) ErE-f) BRER

EHzeE HERANEEX (H&ED)  ERIS17%)  ERE7%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TER TR TR T
Financial results for the year SRMAFBHKHEER
ended 31 December 16T ECHE
2019 impacted by the “E-NET=A
adoption of HKFRS 16: St-HLEFEZ
BEEE:
Loss from operations KeFR (66,150) 1,452 (1,631) (66,329) (27,128)
Finance costs BEMA (682) 181 - (501) -
Loss before tax BREAEE (65,683) 1,633 (1,631) (65,681) (27128)
Loss for the year BRER (65,683) 1,633 (1,631) (65,681) (27,128)

8 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

(Continued)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RMFFTRELEITEEBEH
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING % 2R (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERHAIRKEBIEBHE
HwEER(E)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB BHEERE16% -
E(&)
(i) Impact of the financial results and cash flows (i) #1KE BB 7 X AR
of the Group (Continued) EnBIZFZE(E)
2019 2018
—E-RE —E-N\F
Estimated
amounts related  Hypothetical ~ Compared to
Amounts to operating amounts amounts
reported lease as if for 2019 reported for
under under HKAS 17 as if under 2018 under
HKFRS 16 (notes | & 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
ERRERE
2HHeE —E-AE E-T)\F
REES (BURE 2BREE 26248
HHERE EAEH (BUORE L& (RE
8165 B E1TH) EHE FEes
EHveE (REEIRN)  BRIEI78) EHE175H)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERL T FAT FET
Line items in the consolidated statement TRGEEMBREER
of cash flows for the year ended FORTYEZEE
31 December 2019 impacted by the “Z-NE+ZA
adoption of HKFRS 16: St-BLEEZ
GERBERERER:
Cash used in operations mEpmAZRS (44) (1,260) (1,304) (73,297)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERS 2 HFEHS (181) 181 - -
Net cash used in operating activities BEITBHMAZEEFE (726) (1,079) (1,805) (73,297)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERAEREZERES (1,079) 1,079 - -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEZED(FA)/ gz
financing activities ReFE (1,079) 1,079 - 78,640
e g < A S SR B A R A H] 86
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ok M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. %
%

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i) Impact of the financial results and cash flows
of the Group (Continued)

Notes:

0} The “estimated amounts related to operating
leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the cash
flows in 2019 that relate to leases which would have
been classified as operating leases, if HKAS 17 had
still applied in 2019. This estimate assumes that all
of the new leases entered into in 2019 would have
been classified as operating leases under HKAS 17,
if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2019. Any potential
net tax effect is ignored.

(1 In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in order to
compute hypothetical amounts of net cash used
in operating activities and financing activities as if
HKAS 17 still applied.
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:»/T

CRE RS

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January

(b)

A ﬁg&n“‘ﬂ%ﬂﬁlﬁ )

© 28 {8 14 R A R BV HT R B AR
CHEREE R

AEBRBRAEASRMGE
MAR-_ZE—NFE—A—BHH
Va2 PR TR A R R AT S A8

2019. These new and revised HKFRSs include the (BRI B BB mMELER] - ZF
following which may be relevant to the Group. al REIERT BB M E %
BB #E AR A] g8 B2 N &2 (B AE
ZZER] o
Effective

for accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RZBFBZ2EBBEHN
ChbloER:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
EBSHERNB IR LE B ERFESRET A —EARNEE

1 January 2020
—ET-FTF—-H—H

AEEEEFERFEITAR

The Group is in the process of making an

assessment of what the impact of these T ZE IR B X FE F HA e 78 51
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial LB AEELZSRIEEH
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption BB B TS S R 1658 ]
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on REHGEEBmRELAEX
the consolidated financial statements. HEBZETHE-

BB R AR QY
THFE N EH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates. It also requires management to exercise

its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s

accounting policies. The areas where assumptions and

estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements are

set out below.

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.
When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability
to exercise that right.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary; and (i) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)
(i)

(i)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iiij) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives
are as follows:

Yacht and motor vehicles
Furniture and office equipment

4 years
2—-4 years

Over the
lease term

Leasehold improvements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives and the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is
a change in future lease payments arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group were classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
were recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they were incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified
into the amortised cost measurement category, if the
investment is held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest
method.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective.
Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to accumulated
losses. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as revenue.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Other receivables
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL).

() Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S A Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

(k)

U]

(m)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ik M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

(n) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are
calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of
HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S A Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits,
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or, if the fair value of the services rendered
cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. The fair value
is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. E K2t HE(E)

(Continued)

(p)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally

(p)

BERAE
Wi Bl s EREREE
(NFERRER T ARERTE
RakhENEE)BERENR
MEBEERARAERARZEE
ERAN BN BEEZXFE
FK@ITT’E%E%%&@Z&%%
- BFEBEERANAER
,éfFZHI ﬁﬁ{”ﬁﬁuuﬁ%%ﬁiéfﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁ
REWA é”fﬁ??%?féﬁ
E’J{%fé?ﬁﬁzﬁqﬂﬁ BR

WEEABAMEEERE
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying EEELAR  AgHiZE

asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying assets. Effective 1 January

FM&&E%éﬁmT A&
FREBEREMMEBEERES
B e EXMERTE MR BAR
EEAKEEEHFR ARG
REREEFLMNEERIN
BNEFIEEERA - B -F
—hWF—A—Bk EHHEE
EERBRERAZILERD

2019, any specific borrowing that remain outstanding xR Eiﬁﬁ’]&ﬂﬁﬁf%?ﬁ( BE
after the related asset is ready for its intended A—RER - LT E—RE

use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S A Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ik M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Taxation (Continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S A Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. If this
is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit.
Present values are computed using pre-tax discount
rates that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated pro rata amongst the assets of the
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates
are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ik M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(s) Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
other receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of other receivables.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for the financial
instruments when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. E K2t HE(E)

(Continued)
(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (s) MBEEREE)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) 1= B /7 e A8 & 58 (4E)

In particular, the following information is taken into BERmE  AEEERRES

account when assessing whether credit risk has BB RHERARE KIBIE N

increased significantly since initial recognition: FEEBENTER:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration — SR TEMINE(E) K
in the financial instrument’s external (if NHEHNEETRER £
available) or internal credit rating; BB ERL

—  significant deterioration in external market — ApESmTIAMNEER
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial By INEE MG IR R &
instrument; =

— existing or forecast adverse changes in — X% rsKBEREREE
business, financial or economic conditions that IS B3 78 B IR %2
are expected to cause a significant decrease in 2 WIEFTEREFEBA
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations; MEFEER N NE:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration — EBEBANLKCEXEEER
in the operating results of the debtor; FREHERER:

—  significant increases in credit risk on other — FBBHERESANEAM
financial instruments of the same debtor; and TRIAZEERRKX

@ 3 0 &

— an actual or expected significant adverse - BEBAERHNEE &
change in the regulatory, economic, or B S B 1l faiﬁﬁ/\l%
technological environment of the debtor that T EEEBERTH
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s 2E BSHEBANGE
ability to meet its debt obligations. BEERNBERETR -

Irrespective of the outcome of the above T L HER - AEER

assessment, the Group presumes that the credit 75’5 BN HBR="1

risk on a financial asset has increased significantly BB RERAREER
since initial recognition when contractual payments MEK'FaaiEjJD BRIEAKEAR
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group EERBREBEZERER -

has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

() The financial instrument has a low risk of
default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with
the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal
rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
iS more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

— The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of other receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

WWO China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date.

The ECL for financial assets is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

4. EREFBEGE)

(s)

P& EREGE
BREEERNERER
BHEEBENAEREN
BiR - EXNBRREE M
BEBNRNBEXREE) LE
IR B O R KR - B HBER
RENBREREEZFET
EBEBIEAKE - WIRATHE
HEFHEHAE - ERFTER
EBRORBRERE U BEEM
5 OREREENHRERY
ZEREARE -

RUBEENS  HEHEES
BUURIE A R RN AR E
FEANRS RERAEERE
R BT A T 4 2 P
EFETHE  LRNRER
RSB -

HASEE R BERSHITY
—EeRTARE2HEE
EBERAEESRFEERER
B ERBETHREEHRZER
TAFMTBRNA2HEAMES
BB iR AIRERBRIRTT
HwEAHRE+—EARME
ERERELEAEBERE
(R e ML TTEZBEIN)

AEEAAESR TARER
ERRER D REE - WEB
EiRRERE A REEETTE
JEHE - MAENE&EE B
ARIBBRAMBEE ZRE
18 e

g <z AL ETAR I IR A E]

THFE N EH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ik M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

(u) Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the assets belong.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at
31 December 2019 were HK$4,198,000 (2018:
HK$6,853,000) and HK$714,000 (2018: HKS$NIil)
respectively.

St T PP EENEER
W

REEBR - B RARK R E MGG
THAAZNFERR BH T~—
BRFENEERBENREES
RERFEZEXNRERNFEERF
AT e

(@ ¥xX BRERREREAEER
ERE
WE - BEEREBRERES
B YIRS REHT E KORUE
(B - RETEERSE
B R - AN ER BZA (A B
st LHFAE:-0REEE
HEBREREEMIERAIER
EEEBE WEEREER
BEEH AR YR O & 58 (0 B (&
REE) X RBRHER
REEGORKRESREZ
FIRAE ¢ K (i) #5 B A R A RTA]
Yol & B EE R KRR (R
REREANSEEREER
)  MBAGER —EBE
E(BEEMEEE) A E
TR AAEEHEEMBZ
ReELETan o sEiE
THE - BlR& kG (2
RREAERERAAMREER X
X 38 & K) & BRE B B AT
Rz 2REELEEATE -

R_E—NF+=-—A=+—8"
M- BMERZBEREAEE
EIRE{E S B 54,198,000/ 7T
(== —)\4 : 6,853,000/8 7T)
K714,0008 o (=& — )\ F :
THETT) o

BB AR IR A 3
THFE N EH



114

NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:»/T

CRE RS

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair value of unlisted equity
investments. In determining the fair value, the valuer
has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuation and inputs used are reflective of the current
market conditions.

The carrying amount of unlisted equity investments
as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$12,270,000 (2018: HK$14,518,000).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the
Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
end of the reporting period.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Price risk (Continued)

If equity prices had been 10% (2018: 10%)
higher/lower, loss after tax for the year ended
31 December 2019 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$6,887,000 (2018: HK$11,184,000).
This is mainly due to the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities and from its financing activities, including
equity instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

All of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
are considered to have low credit risk, and the
loss allowance, if any, recognised during the period
was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Financial instruments are considered to be low credit
risk when they have a low risk of default and the
issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. Financial
assets at amortised cost include deposits.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MERAMEE(E)

(Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

(c)

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities is as follows:

REE SRR (E)
BERNEETESRHAE Y
BHRBRBESRE Z BB
RATT

On demand Between
or less than 1 and 2
1 year years Total
BEERK1ER 1225 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA&TT FET
At 31 December 2019 R=-T—h#F
+=A=+—H
Margin payable ERTIRE & 11,934 - 11,934
Lease liabilities MEARE 540 225 765
Accruals fEFTE A 2,685 - 2,685
15,159 225 15,384
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+—A=+—8H
Accruals EETE R 496 — 496

Based on the assessment of the directors, despite
the continuous operating loss incurred by the Group
over the years, the liquidity risk encountered by the
Group is minimal considered that the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital after taking into account the ability
of the Group to conduct fund raising activities and
the ability to realise the financial assets at FVTPL.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises
from its margin payable. The margin payable bears
interest at variable rate that varies with the then
prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group’s operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Bt 35 B B B E (R
(@) FIEE®

74 85 8 T i 0 5L e S
EHRES « BARBES K
BRIEHE - FIEFHRITHS
R T A -

B E SRR E S - A 3
EXHBEEREE A%E
MIEE RS R EEATENS
HERHPE -

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 e) R=ZE—hh&F+=ZA=+—H
December 2019 W Bt T A4 5
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Financial assets: HMBEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL: BERBEREAF
Bt E 2%
BE:
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL ol Il 1 55 B 18
BRAFERE 81,137 126,361
Financial assets measured at REEKAGTE 2
amortised costs K& E 1,050 1,798
Financial liabilities: MBaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised REEKAGTEZ
cost MBaRE 14,619 496
(f) Fair values ) A¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

AEETHEERMBRERN
RREE N ER B BB R P
iR BEZERFERS -

o L ST 7
% U



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i G B 5 ik M Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The following disclosures of fair value measurements use
a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

WW8 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. REVEFEGE)
(Continued)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (@ R=TB-—NF+= )5] =+—H
31 December 2019: E’J’D\IFEJE%WBZ
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERATI@MABEZATLENE: At
Description 8F 3t Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
EF-EBR EER EF=ZEBHR =F—-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FE T FER
Recurring fair value BREHEAFHEFTE:
measurements:
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRBREATEFEZ
MBEE
Listed equity securities R AE S 68,867 - - 68,867
Unlisted equity securities ELTIRAEFH - - 12,270 12,270
Total st 68,867 = 12,270 81,137
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRATIMAB AT EFE: “@Et
Description 1t Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
E—ER BEEBH FZEBHR —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value BREHEAFEFTE:
measurements:
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL EREEATETEZ
MBEE
Listed equity securities TR R 5 111,843 - - 111,843
Unlisted equity securities JEETMRAFE - - 14,518 14,518
Total et 111,843 - 14,518 126,361
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AF¥EFE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value b) BE=ZERAFEFEZE
based on Level 3: EYER:
Description Bt Financial assets at FVTPL
— unlisted equity securities
ERBBESRATETEZ
MBEE — FLTREEZS
2019 2018
ZB-NAEFE = )\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 14,518 16,427
Total gains or losses recognised R RER W= 3k
BEARE
in profit or loss #) B (1,973) (1,099)
in other comprehensive income E2mkas (275) (810)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 12,270 14,518
#) Include gains or losses for assets (#) BIENHEHKIFHR
held at end of reporting period LEEZWESEE (1,973) (1,099)

The total gains or losses recognised in other

RE bR & W ot T 58 2 MR s 3

comprehensive income are presented in exchange
differences on translating foreign operations in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss including those for assets held at the end
of reporting period are presented in net loss on
financial assets at FVTPL in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

’] 20 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by (c) XEBER=-ZFE-NF+=ZH=

the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31
December 2019:

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair value measurements. The chief financial
officer reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between
the chief financial officer and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly as below:

+-HFERAGERFUARD
FEFEFMRANGERN
R@ABEHEE:

AEEERMBEEARERYS
RBENMEcEERBER
FEE BEF-EBAAT
BifE  EREVBEEERE
TREZELATFEFE B
FUBERESSE VST
mERFRERETMRG

A
i

WEZEBRAFEFEMS -
AEEHBEREBARTRER
B MAT BEELR IR
HEEX-

EZBRrTEAEMEAZE
AT AR AMEFEE2HY N
T

Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of
Description technique inputs Value inputs Fair value
BMABEEKY
Bt fhE R M FTABEBAE BE AFEzZZE DNEE
HK$'000
FAT
Private equity Market approach  Price to earnings 12.61 Increase 12,270
investments classified T %% [REEES (2018: 13.48) 7t & (2018: 14,518)
as financial assets at (ZZ—)\F :13.48) (ZZ—N\&F
FVTPL © 14,518)
NERERBERRATE
HEZHMBEEL Net profit HK$42,429,000 Increase
LERRRE i ) 42,429,000 T F&
(2018: HK$43,250,000)
(ZZ-N\F:
43,250,000/ 7T)
Discount for lack of 22.25% Decrease
marketability (2018: 13.83%) & (K

Rz A AT R

(ZZE—N\F: 13.83%)
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8. REVENUE 8. WA
Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FAERZWADT
2019 2018
—g-nE  —T)F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest income on bank deposits WITHERZF B A 1 1
Dividend income g B WA - 17
1 18

The results arising from the fair value change of financial
assets at FVTPL are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income under the line of “Net loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss”. The gross proceeds
from trading of securities for the year amounted to
approximately HK$90,860,000 (2018: HK$140,995,000).

The Group has identified its operating segments and
prepared segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Group’s
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and
review of these components’ performance.

For both years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,
the Group has identified only one segment and the sole
business of this segment is investment in listed and
unlisted securities. No separate analysis of segment
information by business segment is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
its non-current assets by geographical areas are not
presented as the geographical segments other than Hong
Kong are less than 10% of the aggregate amount of all
segments.
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HMWA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Sundry income I A - 30

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B % B A~
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBEZHNERX 181 —
Interest on margin payable FERHRFEE ZF A 501 —
682 —

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FAEHHEX

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin

Islands during the year (2018: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements since the Group
has no assessable profit for the year (2018: Nil).

FA AEBHEFNRSESR
REREZBESRDEERANETMR
B(ZE-N\FH)-

AR EEFA I 8 R RTOE M (—
T-N\F:8) RELEEFEFEH
EHREMBHRRAFELEE -

I < il AL 6 4 B A PR 2 ]
THFE N EH 123



124 %

NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1.
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

8B (&)
Fris i B bR BT B 1B 3R LAR B
FISRMBEEZRBEERNOT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before tax B % A1 5 18 (65,683) (27,128)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate 12 & 7 F 15 5 fi &
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 16.5% (ZZ—/)\F :
16.5%) st E 2 H 1A (10,838) (4,476)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable I~ ] #08 Ug A 2 %4 18
- (453) 3)
Tax effect of expenses that are not NATHR A < B IR
deductible - 1,494 2,059
Tax effect of other temporary B A R 1 SR E R M
differences not recognised ERHoBBETE 4,132 (62)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised &R Hi 1A E 18 2
MR E 5,862 2,607
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not {8 FA %t Aif & B 52 %1 18
previously recognised JE? BZMBETE - (26)
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary R E M EDARE & 48 &
operating in other jurisdiction B AR RA TR
Row & (197) (99)

Income tax expense Frig B

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$241,020,000
(2018: HK$201,729,000) available for offset against future
profits and are subject to the approval of Inland Revenue
Department. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

12.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The Group’s loss for the year attributable to owners of

12. XARBEFARLEFEFE

ARRBEEANRBEASEFEER

the Company is stated after charging the following: RIBRATEIEERZZ5 -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration % B AT BN & 335 320
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEEREEZ
equipment e 2,525 1,668
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTRAREEZINE 1,452 —
Net foreign exchange loss E X B 18 %58 319 786
Operating lease charges for land and T NEFLEHEE
buildings & H 1,674 3,137
13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13. EER/AEAX
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e JEAI KOEBL 5,438 5,282
Retirement benefit scheme BIRE ﬂ T &I K
contributions 145 148
5,583 5,430

(@) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a)
Contributions totalling approximately HK$26,000
(2018: HK$27,000) were payable to the fund at the

end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13. EERAB X (&)
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEERESFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during rEBEFARAAES T HA
the year included 1 (2018: Nil) director whose TEE1R(CE-NF TH)
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented BF HFH M RBANF14
in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining 4 2529 o AT 4B (ZF—
(2018: 5) individuals are set out below: NE 58) A2 Bl& &5
T
2019 2018
—EB-hF b SVAN:
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Basic salaries and allowances N N ] 3,085 3,641
Retirement benefit scheme RKAE F 58 LK
contributions 54 90
3,139 3,731
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B & " FLAT & E :

Number of individuals

AH
2019 2018
—E-NEF —_T— )\
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T &
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
4 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FEXN o AREEBYERTEARS
Group to any of the highest paid individuals as an HMALTZAE - EAIMA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as REBELIMAIL 2 BB EA
compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil). HREE(CE—)\FEE)o

’]26 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13. E E & FIBA X (&)
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEBRESEHEMALE)
The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining 1 NFHBNTHRTE(ZE—
(2018: 1) member of senior management fell within NFEARB)SREBEXNE 2
the following band: Bl & N FLAT & E -
Number of individuals
A"
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% T 1 1
14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 14. EE/ARER
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ ES=ME
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BRESHMEIWOT
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect
of a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BREAXTATRZEMBRARESZIALTRBECAREREM S
Employer’s
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Fees bonus benefit scheme Total
EEXHERKEF
we BB TEAL =T 811 At et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FERT FExT FERT
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Chan Chi Hang PR EE & E
(Note (i) (B (1)) 900 = = 900
Independent Non- BIYFHTES
executive Directors
Mr. Yip Ming HEHRHEE 200 - - 200
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing TINERAE
Edward 200 = = 200
Mr. Zhang Bin (Note (ii) SR M 5 A (B 3 G6i)) 200 = = 200
Mr. Wang Ruiyang F 6 5 5
(Note (iii) (B 5% i) 200 - - 200
800 - - 800
Total for 2019 —E-NEE 1,700 - - 1,700

G L ST B R A D7
U A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 14. ESENRES(E)
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=M < (E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect
of a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

MIERARBXEWMBRATNEEZ ATRBOIHELH

Employer’s
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Fees bonus benefit scheme Total
1E & %R K& T
e BB TEAL FTEIM AR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T FAET T T FAETT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jim Ka Shun (Note (iv)) EZ=ZHE4E
(B 5 (iv) 353 - - 353
Mr. Chan Chi Hang (Note (i) [ & 1E %4
(B 5 (i) 407 — — 407
760 - - 760
Non-executive Director F#HITES
Mr. Ma Chao (Note (v)) 55 48 5 A (B 55 (v)) 309 — — 309
Independent Non- BYHTES
executive Directors
Mr. Yip Ming HEHEE 200 — — 200
Mr. Lau Siu Hang (Note (vi)) 2418 %4
(B 3 (vi) 135 100 - 235
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing TINERAE
Edward 200 - - 200
Mr. Zhang Bin (Note (ii)) o M2 5E A (B 5 Gii) 83 - - 83
Mr. Wang Ruiyang (Note (ii)) T ImF5 L&
(P 52 (iif)) 66 — — 66
684 100 — 784
Total for 2018 —E-N\FHEF 1,753 100 - 1,853
Notes: B 3
(i) Appointed on 20 July 2018. (i) RZZE-N\FLtAZTHEZ

% W

ii) Appointed on 3 August 2018.
iii) Appointed on 3 September 2018.

if) R-E-\F\A=ZARZEE -
REIZE-\FALA=ZHEZIE -

iv) Resigned on 3 August 2018. vy, RZZE-N\FENA=HFIE -
V) Appointed on 2 May 2018 and resigned on 3 August vy RZE-N\GFHA-BHEZ
2018. - UERZZF-NENA=H
BT o
(vi) Resigned on 3 September 2018. vy RZZ—N\FALA=ZHEE -
’] 20 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

14.

15.

16.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year (2018: Nil).

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$65,683,000 (2018: HK$27,128,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,606,649,882
(2018: 1,3883,895,087) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

As the Company did not have any dilutive potential
ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the potential ordinary shares of the Company’s
share options would be anti-dilutive for the year ended
31 December 2018, diluted loss per share was the
same as the basic loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

14.

15.

16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥  BERKE

Yacht and Furniture
motor and office Leasehold
vehicles equipment improvements Total
HFH R
EERSE MAERE HEYEHREB mEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAET FHETT FAT
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H 3,402 765 197 4,364
Additions NE 6,069 a7 5 6,121
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF
1 January 2019 +=ZA=+—8K
—E-NE—HA—H 9,471 812 202 10,485
Additions NE 21 - - 21
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— K E AR
(note 30(a)(i) (Ft ££30(a)(0)) (2,900) (790) (202) (3,892)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—-NF
+=ZA=+—H 6,592 22 - 6,614
Accumulated depreciation ZiITE
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZT—-N\F—HA—H 1,603 326 35 1,964
Charge for the year FEER 1,228 329 111 1,668
At 31 December 2018 and RZB—-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—HK
—ET-hF—HA—H 2,831 655 146 3,632
Charge for the year FEEBHA 2,319 150 56 2,525
Disposal of a subsidiary HE KB AR
(note 30(a)(i) (B 3E30(0)()) (2,749) (790) (202) (3,741)
At 31 December 2019 RZZB—N%F
+ZA=+—8 2,401 15 - 2,416
Carrying amount Bk TH (B
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=ZA=+—H 4,191 7 - 4,198
At 31 December 2018 RZZTE—N\F
+—-—A=+—H 6,640 157 56 6,853

WSO China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FAHEEE

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2019 (note 3(a)(ii)) R-E—NF—HA—H
(Bt 5E3(a)(i)) 1,202
Additions NE 3,825
Depreciation e (1,452)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 30(a)(ii)) HE—HKBAR
(Pt 5230()(i) (2,861)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+A=+—8H 714
2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FHAEEE ZITER X 1,452
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBEZMERX
(included in finance costs) GPNE PEY) 181
Expenses relating to short-term leases FEEESEMEERX
(included in administrative expenses) (GTATTHRA ) 1,674

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in note
30(c).

For both vyears, the Group leases an office and an
accommodation property for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 2 to 3
years, but may have termination options. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

FRABENERSRH 2FBHERN
B 3E30(c) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. JWZﬁE/AﬂZ&ﬁ
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 TE-NAFTZA=T—HZMH
are as follows: J% NG =g (I

Place of
incorporation/ Particular of
registration and issued share Percentage of ownership/ Principal
Name operation capital voting power/profit sharing activities
AR, BERE
8 B BRITRAFE BER/BRER/BRMMEEIN TEXEH
Direct Indirect
B# [F3
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE —T-\F ZE-NF —_T)\F
Affluent Crest Investments Hong Kong 1 ordlnary share - 100% - — Provision of
Limited (‘Affluent Crest’) B 1% 3% i IR management
EEREERAR(ETE]) services
RUEERG
China Finance Qianhai Limited  British Virgin 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% = — Investment
FEERAEERAR Islands US$1 holding
EERXES IREEIEZETZ REEK
ERR
Colour Charm Holdings Limited  British Virgin 1 ordinary share of = 100% = — Asset holding
_ (“Colour Charm’) Islands usst RBEE
FEERAERARI¥E] EBELES 1REBEIETZ
gl
Peaceful Gain Limited British Virgin 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - — Investment
FAMABR AT Islands Us$1 holding
EBRAES IREEIETZ BEZR
China Financial Leasing Hong Kong 1 ordlnary share 100% 100% = — Asset holding
Investments Limited B 1% 3 A% REAE

(“CFL Investments”)
TEEHESREFRATF
(rEzrEERE])

China Finance Qianhai (Hong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100% 100% Inactive
Kong) Limited BiE 1R E &R EEXY
TR ERAE(ER)BRAT
China Financial Leasing Group ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited "5 1R 5 3 ix holding
TESREEEE(EE) REEK
BERAT
FYBEHBEBBABRD People’s Republic  Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment
(RINTE ) of China of Renminbi holding
AERELERBRD (the “PRC”) 15,000,000 REZK
(T /mJ‘JIITQuEZJ) FEARKME HREXAARE
(T E D) 15,000,00075
FYITER is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established FINTER B R 2 NGB E
in the PRC. -
The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries L)U:@J XERIEFEASEHE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities EEXBBECZHMBARIFE °

of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBBERBRAFEFEZ
MR EE
2019 2018
—E-NEF — N\
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FE& T FHET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, ?;zﬁkﬁﬁﬁr 2B/ B LM
at cost R FE FH 126,340 147,680
Net fair value loss @¥1E (SRR (57,473) (35,837)
68,867 111,843
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value FEETRAES
L AFEFE 12,270 14,518
Fair value as at 31 December R+-—A=+—H8x2
NSSIE] 81,137 126,361
Analysed as: R
Non-current assets FERBEE 12,270 14,518
Current assets mENEE 68,867 111,843
81,137 126,361

Financial assets at FVTPL are
following currencies:

denominated

in the

FRBRBEATEFEZMBEE

AT EEE:

2019 2018
—E-AEF = — \4F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Hong Kong dollars BT 68,867 111,843
Renminbi AR 12,270 14,518
81,137 126,361
B e R ST AT R 33

S U



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. Z BEREAFETEZ

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are
mandatorily measured at FVTPL in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

The investments included above represent investments in
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity for
return through dividend income and fair value gains. They
have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

The fair values of listed securities are based on quoted
market prices. For unlisted securities, the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The realised and unrealised losses on financial assets
at FVTPL for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
approximately HK$23,854,000 (2018: HK$2,701,000)
and HK$23,609,000 (2018: HK$2,445,000) respectively,
the aggregate of which was recorded as net loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2019, listed securities with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$66,322,000 (2018:
HKS$NIl) have been pledged to secure margin payable of
approximately HK$11,934,000 (2018: HK$NIil).

WB China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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A Ay = 32 1 =
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. EBERBRAFEFTEZ
- S ==
(Continued) M5 EE (&)
Particulars of the Company’s financial assets at FVTPL RAARIRZE—NF+A=+—
as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: Bz BBBREAFTETEZHE
AEFENT
Net assets
Place of Proportion Market Fair value attributable
incorporation/ Number of of investee’s value/ (losses)/  Exchange to the
Name of investee company registration shares held  capital owned Cost fair value gains differences Company
) FEERRE ) APE KD ABA
FREDNTDER aMEIEYE  FERGHE DEAERLA RE HE/AVE (FB)/kE EXER BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR TER FER TER FER
() Hing Ming Holdings Limited (‘Hing Ming”) Cayman Islands 6,988,000 1.75% 9,808 8,106 (1,702) - 2,138
AFBRERDR (HE]) HEES
(o) ISP Global Limited (‘ISP Global”) Cayman Islands 6,700,000 Less than 1% 7,098 5,695 (1,403) - m
ISP Global Limited ([ISP Globall) HEES HR1%
(c)  Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 177,600,000 4.59% 32,894 13,320 (19,574) - 3,312
_(*Future Bright Mining") REHS
ERBEXERERARD(REER])
(d)  Mii International Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 41,650,000 2.78% 12,909 11,662 (1,247) - 5,891
(“Miji International”) HERS
KRRERERERAR (CRER])
) RMH Holdings Limited (‘RMH Holdings”) Cayman Islands 29,896,000 4.98% 14,701 4813 (9,888) - 4,248
ERERERAA ((EHER]) HEES
(f) ~ C&N Holdings Limited (‘C&N Holdings") Cayman Islands 27,110,000 4.24% 12,747 2,169 (10,578) - 5,056
ERBRERLR(FaER]) REHs
(@  National Investments Fund Limited Cayman Islands 41,072,000 4.49% 7,542 7147 (395) - -
(“National Investments Fund”) HEHS
AEREESERAR(ERRERES])
(h)  LHN Limited (“LHN") Singapore 1,288,000 Less than 1% 1,277 914 (363) - 1,732
LHN Limited (TLHNJ) g HR1%
() Golden Ponder Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 5,860,000 Less than 1% 1,181 1,108 (73) - 1,377
(“Golden Ponder”) HEHS D%
sRERERLA(E2®])
() China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Bermuda 3,500,000 Less than 1% 1,649 840 (809) - 967
(“China Ocean Fishing’) BRE PR1%
FEEERERRARL
(MrEEEHED)
(k) Tasty Concepts Holding Limited Cayman Islands 7,700,000 1.54% 1,832 770 (1,062) - 1,307
(“Tasty Concepts”) REHS
BZHRERERAR (8 2K])
() Wan Leader International Limited Cayman Islands 16,560,000 1.97% 4,753 3,709 (1,044) - 1,191
(“Wan Leader") HERS
ERERRARAR(ERRE])
(m)  Pacific Legend Group Limited Cayman Islands 18,220,000 1.82% 4,357 2,369 (1,988) - 2,413
(‘Pacific Legend’) Heks
KEBREERBERAD(KEREER])
() Eggriculture Foods Ltd. (“Eggriculture Foods”) ~ Cayman Islands 850,000 Less than 1% 123 125 2 - 230
Eggriculture Foods Ltd. ([Eggriculture Foods)) &3S D%
(0 WAC Holdings Limited (“WAC”) Cayman Islands 2,040,000 Less than 1% 5,364 6,120 756 - 145
WAG Holdings Limited ([WAC]) REHS LM%
(p)  Long Success International Holdings Limited ~ Bermuda 13,450,000 Less than 1% 8,105 - (8,105) - -
(“Long Success’) BEE P1%
BRARERERAF(EHRER])
@ HAEER PRC N/A 3.00% 15,000 12,270 (1,829) (901) 8,337
® ~ER
141,340 81,137 (59,302) (901)

8 < L £ 995 4 R 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)
A brief description of the business and financial
information of the investee companies, based on
their published annual and interim reports, results
announcements and management accounts, is as follows:

(@ Hing Ming is principally engaged in (i) providing rental
services of temporary suspended working platforms
and other equipment, mainly including tower cranes
and generators; and (i) trading of equipment
and spare parts, mainly including permanent
suspended working platforms, motors and wire
rope. The audited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Hing Ming for the year ended 31 March
2019 was approximately HK$6,325,000. As at
31 March 2019, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Hing Ming was
approximately HK$118,706,000. The unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of Hing
Ming for the six months ended 30 September
2019 was approximately HK$3,649,000. As at
30 September 2019, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Hing Ming was
approximately HK$122,355,000.

(b) ISP Global is principally engaged in the sales,
installation and maintenance of sound and
communication system solutions and alert alarm
systems in Singapore. The audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of ISP Global for
the year ended 30 June 2019 was approximately
HK$583,000 (2018: Loss of HK$9,574,000).
As at 30 June 2019, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of ISP
Global was approximately HK$84,463,000 (2018:
HK$84,538,000). The unaudited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of ISP Global for
the six months ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$332,000 (2018: HK$368,000).
As at 31 December 2019, the unaudited net
asset value attributable to owners of ISP Global
was approximately HK$84,894,000 (2018:
HK$84,630,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBBERERAFETFEZ
(Continued) MKEEE)
() Future Bright Mining is principally engaged in (i) © =EREITEBHRFHIZEIL

excavate and sale of marble blocks; (ii) production
and sale of marble related products; and (iii) trading
of commodities. The unaudited (2018: audited)
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Future
Bright Mining for the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$21,332,000 (2018:
HK$58,770,000). As at 31 December 2019, the
unaudited (2018: audited) consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Future Bright
Mining was approximately HK$72,163,000 (2018:
HK$94,605,000).

Miji International is principally engaged in the
development, manufacturing and selling of
kitchen appliances in the PRC. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of Miji
International for the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$21,271,000 (2018:
HK$26,585,000). As at 31 December 2019, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Miji International was approximately
HK$212,162,000 (2018: HK$194,710,000).

RMH Holdings is principally engaged in the
provision of specialty care services for a variety
of dermatological conditions by utilising medical,
surgical, laser and aesthetic treatments in Singapore.
The audited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of RMH Holdings for the year ended
31 December 2019 was approximately HK$908,000
(2018: HK$10,758,000). As at 31 December 2019,
the audited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of RMH Holdings was approximately
HK$85,265,000 (2018: HK$83,868,000).

HERNEBEATA: (VEEWLHE
EREAOMEBE® K&i)Em
g5 HE-_ZT—NF+_-A
S+ —HLEFE SBEZE
BEEABRGRALCEZ(ZE—
NF REBEZ)IGAEBEEBNA
21,332,000 L (=& —/)\%F :
58,770,000/ 7C) e R=ZZE—JL
F+-A=Z1+—H8 2EEE
BEANEEREEZ(ZE—
NEFE REBERREEEFEAE
#1572,163,000/8 L (ZZ— )\
F 1 94,605,000/ L) °

KEBEBEFERERTERA
BCoBERHEHERA-
RBE_E—hh&+=-A=+
—HIEFE  KEEE#EAR
ANEERKEZEERZMNN B
21,271,000 7T (ZF —/)\F :
26,585,000/ 7L) e RZZF—1L
F+-A=1+—H  KFEE
BEABECEZGEEETF
B #) A212,162,000 ;L (= F
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S\ 110,758,000 7T) » A=
T-NE+-_A=+—8 &
Hr i B A FE (L & & 1% 4R
& & EFEA#R85,265,000/%8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

)

C&N Holdings is principally engaged in the provision
of transport and storage services to the logistics
industry in Singapore. The audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of C&N Holdings for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$5,631,000 (2018: Profit of HK$2,715,000). As
at 31 December 2019, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of C&N
Holdings was approximately HK$119,352,000 (2018:
HK$124,134,000).

National Investments Fund is principally engaged
in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed
and unlisted companies. The audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of National Investments
Fund for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$25,043,000. As at 31 December
2019, the audited consolidated shareholders’ deficit
of National Investments Fund was approximately
HK$51,990,000.

LHN is principally engaged in (i) space resource
management services; (i) facilities management
services; and (i) logistics services. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of LHN
for the year ended 30 September 2019 was
approximately HK$46,930,000. As at 30 September
2019, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of LHN was approximately
HK$541,215,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. EBERR AT EFEZ
(Continued) MK EE(E)

(i)

Golden Ponder is principally engaged in the
provision of superstructure building and repair,

B

EREIBURERNTEERAE
AEEEHR EEEEREN

maintenance, alteration and addition works service BE #HE HNEBEEMETL
as a main contractor in Hong Kong. The audited BR®E REBEZEZT-NF=
consolidated profit attributable to owners of Golden A=+—HLFE c®m%B

Ponder for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$16,824,000. As at 31 March
2019, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Golden Ponder was
approximately HK$190,322,000. The unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Golden
Ponder for the six months ended 30 September
2019 was approximately HK$2,276,000. As at
30 September 2019, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Golden Ponder
was approximately HK$188,046,000.

China Ocean Fishing is principally engaged in
provision of supply chain management services,
money lending and ocean fishing. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of China
Ocean Fishing for the year ended 31 March
2019 was approximately HK$43,668,000. As at
31 March 2019, the audited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of China Ocean
Fishing was approximately HK$1,232,153,000.
The unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of China Ocean Fishing for the six months
ended 30 September 2019 was approximately
HK$10,593,000. As at 30 September 2019, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of China Ocean Fishing was approximately
HK$1,168,150,000.

ABERBEZEZEERMNDA
16,824,000/ 7T - RZ=ZF — /1
FZA=+—H &wm#EAA
EhEEZEGEEEFAY
/190,322,000 7T - R & =
—E-NFAA=ZTHILARRE
A 2&BEBEABGEREEZ
REE1B 452,276,000/ 7T ©
RZZE—NFLA=+TH &
MEBABEREEZEEG
& E ¥ B %) /5188,046,000/8
5E o

PR FHE T EN ERMEH
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BB ANEESEZEE R
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NFE=ZA=+—8  #BE*
HBHREBEANEBLEEZES
B EFEAH1,232,153,0008
T RBE_ZE—hFNLA=
THIEAEAR - REUG RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. EBERR AT EFEZ
(Continued) MK EE(E)

(k)

Tasty Concepts is principally engaged in operation
of Japanese ramen restaurants in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Tasty Concepts’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange since 15 March 2019. The
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of Tasty Concepts for the year ended 31 March
2019 was approximately HK$12,261,000. As at
31 March 2019, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Tasty Concepts
was approximately HK$91,167,000. The unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Tasty
Concepts for the six months ended 30 September
2019 was approximately HK$6,398,000. As at
30 September 2019, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Tasty Concepts
was approximately HK$84,844,000.

Wan Leader is principally engaged in (i) the provision
of freight forwarding and related logistics services;
and (i) the provision of warehousing and related
value-added services. The audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of Wan Leader for the
year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
HK$15,971,000. As at 31 March 2019, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners
of Wan Leader was approximately HK$69,240,000.
The unaudited consolidated loss attributable
to owners of Wan Leader for the six months
ended 30 September 2019 was approximately
HK$8,740,000. As at 30 September 2019, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Wan Leader was approximately
HK$60,407,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBRBERVAFEFERZ
(Continued) MKEEE)
(m) Pacific Legend is principally engaged in (i) sale m) Pacific LegendE Z #¢ = (i)

of home furniture and accessories; (i) leasing of
home furniture and accessories; and (iii) provision of
design consultancy services for fitting out interiors
with  furnishings. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of Pacific Legend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$7,802,000. As at 31 December 2019, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Pacific Legend was approximately
HK$132,428,000.

Eggriculture Foods is principally engaged in
production and sale of fresh eggs and processed
egg products in Singapore. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of
Eggriculture Foods for the year ended 31 March
2019 was approximately HK$9,041,000. As at
31 March 2019, the audited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Eggriculture
Foods was approximately HK$125,208,000. The
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Eggriculture Foods for the six months
ended 30 September 2019 was approximately
HK$12,486,000. As at 30 September 2019, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Eggriculture Foods was approximately
HK$135,129,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)
(00 WAC is principally engaged in provision of

comprehensive structural and geotechnical
engineering consultancy services. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of WAC for
the year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
HK$419,000. As at 31 March 2019, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners
of WAC was approximately HK$70,948,000. The
unaudited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of WAC for the six months ended 30 September
2019 was approximately HK$2,580,000. As at
30 September 2019, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of WAC was
approximately HK$68,276,000.

Long Success’s shares were suspended for trading
on the Stock Exchange on 3 December 2013 and
delisted on 19 October 2016.

B¢58EJR and its subsidiaries were principally engaged

in the business of providing consumer financial services
to owners of motor vehicles in the PRC. The unaudited
(2018: audited) consolidated profit attributable to owners
of Bt & 8L)R for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$42,429,000 (2018: HK$43,250,000).
As at 31 December 2019, the unaudited (2018: audited)
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of
Bt & 8EJR was approximately HK$277,901,000 (2018:
HK$79,658,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

21.

22,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 21. RERFEMNRE
2019 2018
—F-AF —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHT
Deposits Ze 188 871
Prepayments AT IR - 342
188 1,213

DEPOSIT RECEIVED 22. Bz %

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Deposit received for sale of yacht MHEHEE 2B WIES 2,550 —

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated
5 November 2019 entered into between CFL Investments
and an independent third party (the “Yacht Buyer”), CFL
Investments disposed of the yacht at a consideration
of approximately HK$5,100,000. The transfer of yacht
would only be completed when the consideration was
fully settled. As at 31 December 2019, only half of the
consideration was received from the Yacht Buyer and the
settlement date of the remaining balance was extended
to 31 January 2020 by supplemental agreements.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the sale and
purchase agreement lapsed as the Yacht Buyer was
unable to settle the remaining balance. The deposit
received was forfeited and recognised as other income
by the Group after the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

23. MARGIN PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

23. ERNfRRBEREFTEHR

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHBT FAETT

Margin payable to a broker JE NRELEZRES 11,934 -
Accruals EETE A 2,685 496
14,619 496

Margin payable represents margin loan arising from
the trading of listed investments which is repayable on
demand. At 31 December 2019, margin payable bears
interest of 10.25% per annum and is secured by financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$66,322,000.

The carrying amount of margin payable is denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

The margin payable is arranged at floating rate, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
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Annual Report 2019

ERNRELABEBE LMIRES B
RECEFT FRAREBLSERIIR
BREEE R-ZT-AF+-A
=+—H: ENRE é?;z1o25%ﬂ’7
FREFE  BEREBEBEREA
BF 82 W% & E #66,322, ooo,%
TLIEH AR -

ENRES ZEREEDAE T
18 e

JERTRZE © THIRF B E .ﬁﬁv
AEEEBRRESRE N ER kKR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24. HEAE
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
REHENRE REHERENRE
2019 2018 2019 2018

“B-hE —T)\FE ZB-AE —T-)\E
FHx  FAEL TAR  TAX

Within one year —FR 540 - 496 -
In the second to fifth years, E_ZFERF
inclusive (BREEEMF) 225 - 220 -
765 — 716 —
Less: Future finance charges W RKBMEER N/A
(49) - FEAR -
Present value of lease obligations 7 &#&ERE 716 - 716 -

Less: Amount due for settlement & : 72+ =& B X
within 12 months (shown under  ZIEIEf » &
current liabilities) GIAREEE) (496) -

Amount due for settlement after — + =18 A% 2 EAE

12 months 2 HE 220 -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the AEBERALETEN EZEXE
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the RE B REERF165E - I
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise a BRZE-—NF—HA BRI
lease liability relating to a lease which was previously MRUABRELENREEBSFE
classified as operating lease under HKAS 17. Comparative A7 R RKEHENHEEIR
information as at 31 December 2018 has not been BHENEERGE R —/\F
restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to T A=+ —HZHBRERURE
HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3. H| o BRBIEZEE B IS E LR

PR BN E— DB
3o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. B
2019 2018
—E-AF T\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Authorised: EE
15,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 15,000,000,000 % &% &

HK$0.02 each 0.028 7T 2 & ifB i 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRABE:
1,606,649,882 ordinary shares of  1,606,649,8820% & I H (&

HK$0.02 each 0.0278 7T 2 & 38 % 32,133 32,133
A summary of the movements in the issued share capital FAARRRDEITRAESHE Z 10
of the Company during the year is as follows: T

Number of
ordinary
shares of
HK$0.02 each Par value
=R E{50.02
BIZEBR
2A HE
Note HK$'000
B o FHET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F
—H—H 1,092,149,882 21,843
Issue of shares on placements B & 1T D (@) 487,000,000 9,740
Exercise of share options TP s AR (b) 27,500,000 550
At 31 December 2018, RZZE—N\%F
1 January 2019 and +—-—A=+—H"
31 December 2019 —E-NF
—HA—BK
—E-NF
+=—A=+—H 1,606,649,882 32,133
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HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 25. BRA(48)

Notes: Bt

(@ On 29 March 2018, the Company entered into a placing @ RZE-NF=A=F+NH KAF
agreement with Supreme China Securities Limited (“Supreme”) HRERLGRAR(EEDIEAR
as placing agent where Supreme agreed to place on a best ERE)FITL—HEERS - Bt
effort basis a maximum of 220,000,000 new shares of the BERBENAGREER MK 0135
Company (“Placing Share 1”) of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.135 per 7 7T B & £ %220,000,000% & f& |
Placing Share | to at least six placees who were professional B0.028 Lz A REFT RGO ([E &’
investors according to the definition of the Securities and D) TR DRI @E/\(ﬁ%ﬁ‘%&
Future Ordinance. The intended and actual use of proceeds EE(ERRBHRBE ‘HEU))
from the share placement was for general working capital and NEREMSHRBEZRERERB 7%
investments. The placing transaction was completed on 23 April —ﬂﬁ BEESRIRE - @E%“%EEA
2018 and a total of 220,000,000 shares were issued. The gross —NFHOAZ+=ATKEEH
and net proceeds were approximately HK$29,700,000 and %17220 000,000% & 17 » FT 15 5K 18
HK$28,958,000 respectively. The net price was approximately WE R FED EJ,%’U29,700,000/’§7E&
HK$0.132. 28,958,0005% 7T ° B¢ & % 8 £70.132

BT e
On 12 July 2018, the Company entered into a placing agreement RZZE-NFtLtA+=ZH XQF
with Supreme as placing agent where Supreme agreed to HEEWAREERB)FIY AR
place on a best effort basis a maximum of 267,000,000 new EWE Bt SEREZIUF
shares of the Company (“Placing Share II”) of HK$0.02 each BEERDI 01758 TR ER %
at HK$0.175 per Placing Share Il to at least six placees who 267,000,000% F AR E{E0.02/8 7L 2 7N
were professional investors according to the definition of the NEF R G (RERGI) TR
Securities and Future Ordinance. The intended and actual NEEREAAREEREE(FERE
use of proceeds from the share placement was for general HFREEGE)) - RO BESSEHRIE
working capital and investments. The placing transaction was LHRERERERAZER —MEEES
completed on 1 August 2018 and a total of 267,000,000 shares EkEE - BEEXZFERZZTE—NEN
were issued. The gross and net proceeds were approximately A—HBZKEE /\?§17267000 000/%
HK$46,725,000 and HK$45,557,000 respectively. The net price fRMn - IS RIBRBRFEINNA
was approximately HK$0.171. 46,725,000/ 7T 145,557,000/ JT ©
il & F B H0A7T1B T ©
(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the subscription b REE-F-NF+ZA=t—-HBL

rights attaching to 27,500,000 shares options issued pursuant
to the share option scheme of the Company were exercised
at the subscription price of HK$0.15 per share, resulting in the
issue of 27,500,000 shares of HK$0.02 each for a total cash
consideration of approximately HK$4,125,000.

FE- Wﬁ%%%ﬁ/\&ﬂxﬂx@o.w
B2 REETERE RN BRE
5T 8317 8927,500,00017 8 A% 4 F7 Bt
B3R BE M+ KR A) 5 1727,500,000 %
TRRAEEC.02B TR Y « B BN
& R B4 54,125,000 7T °

g s Mﬁ"’ﬁgl_lflﬂ uJW47
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w7 A B R R M R
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-2-AFt-A=+—ALFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

()  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it continues to provide returns
and benefits for stakeholders;

(i) To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(i)  To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities.

The Group also balances its overall capital structure
periodically. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group will also
consider the raise of long-term borrowings as second
resource of capital when investment opportunities arise
and the return of such investments will justify the cost of
debts from the borrowings.
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25. R (&)

AEBEREARZARERE:

() HEXAEEZFELERS
FERBELFHERHEBRR
F 2% s

() BBEAEEZBTHEREE:
]

(i) AEEAEERMLRERE DM
IREERX -

ZRIANEBZRRERERRE
ARpes - WS RIEABNEES - B
ARERSRE  RAEAFAX R
BRIRBIRERSE  AERERETE
Hlmat M EEEERRE R
TENEARBRERERE

AEBNEHFOHEBRRBERR
B AEERZEN RS NMAR
BEZRBELEMEREERNRE
WEHTE - SERHABEARR
B AEEREHABRARRMNZ
BETHE EEES TRRIHET
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B ZEERRHENERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE
25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

25. R (&)

The Group regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as
at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$69,214,000 (2018: HK$134,858,000), in which the
Group considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities.

The Group also endeavours to ensure the steady and
reliable cash flow from the normal business operation. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
raise any debts.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.
The Group received a report from share registrars on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrated continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year.

REBREAEEFRMGERA
ERAEEXR - R_T—AF+_-A
=+—HZEX% T #69,214,000
B (=& — J\F : 134,858,000/
7T) - W TR ARELERIERE AR
A RTER R ERBRERRE
REKE -

AEBABNERBEEEXZHES
TRERENMAISERERE - BHE
—T-)\FFTA=t—HILFE -
NS B R IR AE TS

EENINMERERRE  AEEHR
MR EEBR e b BB
BB RBIFHRE - K
SEERNECREE-HBTE
NBEFRECEREERNDES <
HE EHERAERBERNEBFEA
—H ET25% R o

B E AR R A 40

THFE N EH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 26. Z AR B MRRRREE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =)
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) ADFEKEAMMR T

At 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-nE T NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y E =y 7 85
Right-of-use assets EREEE 714 —
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE - 3,325
721 3,410
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BEBERIEATETEY
VBEE 68,867 111,843
Deposits and prepayments e AN KIE 153 —
Due from subsidiaries JFE U B B X B FR B 13,631 22,505
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S &% 806 815
83,457 135,163
Current liabilities REBAE
Margin payable and accruals ERNREeLEFER 14,263 452
Lease liabilities HeEaE 496 —
14,759 452
Net current assets REBEEZFE 68,698 134,711
Total assets less current liabilities R EER A EE 69,419 138,121
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 220 —
NET ASSETS EERE 69,199 138,121

W5O China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 26. A T M BRRREEGE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 28 (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) A2THBAMRRF(E)
(Continued)

o|

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—AH
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
oS FET FAT
Equity attributable to owners of ZAAQAT#EHE AEHL
the company P
Share capital % A 25 32,133 32,133
Reserves & ¥ 27(b) 37,066 105,988
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 69,199 138,121
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March RZZFEZZTEF=ZHA-+HEK
2020 and is signed on its behalf by: EFeRERBUTESKE
B2
Chan Chi Hang Liu Hailong
BREE 2158
Executive Director Non-executive Director
HITEF HHTEF

o < A B SR A IR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 26. ZARMBERAEXREHE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE b=
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) XATFIREEE
Capital Share
Share reduction option Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ERER
4% B e BRERS RitE#E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F
—A—H 194,740 19,444 1,583 (153,894) 61,873
Total comprehensive income & A2 Yk 25 4258
for the year - - - (24,235) (24,235)
Issue of shares on placements B¢ & FF 2 17 % 19
(note 25(a)) (Kt 5E25(a)) 66,685 - - - 66,685
Share issue expenses BHETRE (1,910) - - - (1,910)
Issue of shares under share % & B i &1 8 % 17
option scheme (note 25(b)) H% 1 (B 5E25(0)) 5,158 - (1,583) - 3,575

At 31 December 2018 and RZZT—N\F

1 January 2019 +T-A=+—-8K
“T—-hF—A—H 264,673 19,444 — (178,129) 105,988
Total comprehensive income & A 2 [ U & 4258
for the year - - - (68,922) (68,922)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-A=+-8 264,673 19,444 - (247,051) 37,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

27. RESERVES
Group

(a)

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s

reserves and

movements therein are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. The share premium may also
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Capital reduction reserve

Capital reduction reserve represents the
credit arising from the reduction of par value
of issued share capital after cancelling the
accumulated losses of the Company in 2012.
The reserve may be utilised by the directors as
a distributable reserve in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company and all
applicable laws.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to directors,
employees and consultants of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(o) to the consolidated
financial statements.

27. {#1#&

(@ #=&£H
ANEBEESHEREREFHE
FAE 5 o Hofth 2 T U 2R R UA

ERmEHRTEI -

(b) EEZHEERBH

(i)

(i)

B GEER
ﬁﬁ%x%%“ﬂ% VN
Rl aEEREESA

IR FARB ZBR -
HHERBERZ D IKKE
HAEWM% K //\ﬁﬁb
NBEEEREEBHE
M2 E% - BiDEE R
AR AL 2 77 D
K e

B B B
BAREIRHEERER =T —
“EEHARBREE
REIH B E B TRAE
BZAK -FHEAIBE
ERBARFEBER
AR BB RAD A
ER T DR ©

(iii) BREFE

BREREERTASE
BE= REELKBEMZ
T RT3 B8 B B R =k
HEBEZAFE  RE
7 B BT R M S 4(0) P
HERAEROER
NPT 2 &5t R
FERR -
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HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

27.

28.

29.

RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Foreign currency translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
The calculation of the net asset value per share is based
on the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019
of approximately HK$69,214,000 (2018: HK$134,858,000)
and the number of ordinary shares of 1,606,649,882
(2018: 1,606,649,882) in issue as at that date.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, suppliers,
customers, legal and financial advisers of the Company
and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 12 January 2012 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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27.

28.

29.

it = (&)
(b) 2 ERE N
(iv) SR E R

INERHRERERA
BEE N EBH B RE
EEZERER R
& B MR R I EE4(0) P
B RRETEE -

BEREEFE
EREEFEDNERBR-_Z—N
Ft+-_A=+—BAXAEEFEE
#9/69,214,000/8 7T (ZF — )\ F :
134,858,000/ /L) K Rz BB & 17
1,606,649,882% & @ (= — )\
£ :11,606,649,8820% )5t &

R A0 B 1 Y =K
EEEEBRESS
ARRR/FMEBMASEEEBKAD
B B8 2 B R HUSUB F0 A2 B M
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RTEHURHER] - BRIAZ B
HEF0F A R -
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EREEESAHE - — &7 A
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 29. iR & # {4 & (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than five years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised or
expired under the Scheme during the year.

There were no outstanding share options as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

L EERETE (E)

BRYARGBIESE TBTHABR
FERRIBEEMBEALZ
BREASLIKBIYIENTES
BOEFAIEE o o HTARQF]
FTERFESIBIUIIERTESHES
BB AL ZEERE  WR
E a2 A HA R 8 38 1 {r] B ] 32 17
Z AR T RAD01% 3K 4 1E (38 AN A
AIBRMRIBELBERERTE) BA
5,000,000/ 7T + BIZBS LA R A
SRR HFAEER -

ARARASNEBERES RS
TTRBZHAMEAEAR  HAK
HEBRE 2 B4 - TRBREZTT
FEHAHESETE  TRE—HE
HIREFERTERBREZNA
IR Az Bk %At &l m A 3
NREERE)ER °

BRETEEARERETE  ET
SEROARFRONEBRIEZLD
BE] 2 B 32 P U B ¢ (i) A2 AR
NEZZHEHNAEAZXZEZF
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NOT ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z—NE+-A=+—HIEE
30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 3. FEBHERERMET
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (@ HEHWBLR
(i) Disposal of Colour Charm (i) HEES

On 31 December 2019, the Group disposed of
the entire issued share capital in Colour Charm
at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$1,300,000.

Net assets of Colour Charm at the date of
disposal were as follows:

RZZE-NF+ZA=+
—B - XEEURSKE
471,300,000/ JT 1 & ¥
EZEDBE%é HX$

VENHERYY EEF
EmT:

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment (note 17) % - & = & &% # (B 5£17) 151

Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 151

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEB AR 2 W& 1,149

Total consideration satisfied by cash AR etz BRE 1,300
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEAZRESFRA:

Cash consideration received EWE e RE 1,300
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
(ii) Disposal of Affluent Crest

On 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
of the entire issued share capital in Affluent
Crest at a cash consideration of approximately

HK$147,000.

Net assets of Affluent Crest at the date of

30. R E R & R B R M (&)

(@) HEKBAE(E)
(i) HEIEIZ

s

N— =

—NEF+-A=+
—H > AEBENURERE
#]147,0007%8 JT 4 & & T

ZEEBBEEITRA -

BERNHERRZEE

disposal were as follows: FEWT
HK$’000
FET
Right-of-use assets (note 18) i A#EEE(MFE18) 2,861
Deposits and prepayments e RN FKIE 541
Accruals fEETE A (23)
Lease liabilities HERE (3,232)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 147
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMRB AR 2 W= -
Total consideration satisfied by cash NBEEZNzBKE 147
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS F R A
Cash consideration received BEWBE S RE 147

TR E AR R A 5

B U A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. RERERERNE(E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) MEITHMEEZABEHE
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TERRBASERMETEMEL
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BEZEHFE  EERER
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising FEeEE METIMESE
from financing activities are those for which cash ZBEEReREXBERS
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified MERRAEBGERERE
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows OB RMELHFEARS
as cash flows from financing activities. mMEZAE -
Impact
on initial Restated
application balance at New Disposal
1 January of HKFRS 1 January leases Cash of a 31 December
2019 16 (note 3) 2019 entered flows subsidiary 2019
NRER
EBUHK i
HERHE —T-AE
“E-hE 165N E —B—HW HE—B —E-NF
—B—H (fEXs) KREFLH FTHN BRERE MEAE +=A=+-H
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$O000 HK$O00 HK$O00  HK$'000 HK$'000
FER  FER  TAR TR TRR  TER Fa%
Lease liabilities HEAE
(note 24) (Bft 3%24) - 1,202 1,202 3,825 (1,079) (3,232) 716
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEREARHHEE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of RERERERAMTANRE
cash flows for leases comprise the following: BRIEBRIEAT &IE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Within operating cash flows KERSRE 1,513 3,371
Within financing cash flows BERERE 1,079 —
2,592 —
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30.

31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. MEREMERM =T (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (Continued) (c) HERESRHBEZHEE)
These amounts relate to the following: ZEeBENTHERR:
2019 2018
—EB-hF b SVAN:
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lease rental paid BEfEE 2,706 3,371
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. FAREE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any RZE-—NF+—A=+—H &K
significant contingent liabilities (2018: Nil). SEYEEMNEAXABRCE
—N\F |,
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS  32. K& EZH
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZFE-—NF+ZA=+—H
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are ARG EHE T A HRKRKIE
payable as follows: MERBEATINOT:
HK$'000
T
Within one year —F R 803
In the second to fifth years inclusive TEFRF(BREEMT) 765
1,568
Operating lease payments represented rentals payable KEHMERBEASEERN 2B

by the Group for its office, accommodation property and
berth of yacht. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging
from 1 month to 3 years and rentals are fixed over the
lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
accommodation property and berth of yacht. As at
31 December 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 18, and the
outstanding lease commitments relating to these leases
is approximately HK$35,000.

NE-(FRYERERBUVES -
?ﬁf—iﬁ%ii,ﬁﬂﬁﬂlﬂisi i 78
cHREESHBEFETBRIERAM

N5 B E HIRE (R M 3 I R OR
MRV EHMAE R-T—NF+
“A=tT—RH EHHEREHS
B 18T B R IR E X i

MEREEREAANRE  REZ
SHEERNARBEMEAENR
35,000/ 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.BEIXRS

Compensation of key management personnel FEEBAEZHMS
The remuneration of directors and other key management FAN EFNEMFTEERAEY
during the year was as follows: e BUNNE
2019 2018
—E-AF T\
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Short-term benefits 55 HAtR A 3,635 3,967
Post-employment benefits RIREF 20 39
3,655 4,006
34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 34. REHREE
PERIOD

@)

On 30 December 2019, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with Orient Securities
Limited (“Orient”) as placing agent where Orient
agreed to place on a best effort basis a maximum
of 321,000,000 new shares of the Company
(“Placing Share IlI") of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.1 per
Placing Share lll to at least six placees who were
professional investors according to the definition
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
intended and actual use of proceeds from the share
placement was for general working capital and
investments.

The placing transaction was completed on
23 January 2020 and a total of 321,000,000 shares
were issued. The gross and net proceeds were
approximately HK$32,100,000 and HK$31,137,000
respectively. The net price was approximately
HK$0.097 per Placing Share ll. Details of the placing
transaction were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 30 December 2019 and
23 January 2020 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ S B A Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HBILFE

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 34. FEHHEREHE(E)

PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

After the coronavirus outbreak in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures has been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The
Group is paying close attention to the development
of, and the effect to business and economic
activities caused by, the coronavirus outbreak
and evaluating its impact on the Group. Given the
uncertainties brought by the coronavirus outbreak, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
its financial effect on the Group’s financial position,
cash flows and operating results at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the realised losses and
unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss from changes in fair value on
financial assets at FVTPL held as at 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately HK$15,628,000
and HK$5,680,000 respectively.

(b)

HE_E_TFYERMAEEE
% - —RIFEHFIESITEED
ER2RER - AEE—EEY
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A B B 2

A summary of the published results and of the assets and ¥ 8k B A& 38 1% 81 7% 3k 3k 2 & 3T AL B BT IR
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted FEZAEBRAMGEBEUAREENE
from the audited financial statements, is set out below. BEZMEEH AT MEXL N EREF
The summary does not form part of the audited financial 8t ##HE 2 2B -

statements.

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-hnE ZE-N\F —T—+F —T-R"F —T-IfF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FATL TET TET

RESULTS £
Revenue PN 1 18 - 1 1
Loss before tax BREiAIEE (65,683) (27,128) (45,370) (37,656) (34,148)
Income tax expense ERAX - - - - -

Loss for the year attributable ~ AARHEAE A
to owners of the Company RIEFEEE (65,683) (27.128) (45,370) (37,656) (34,148)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERE&fE

Non-current assets ERBEE 17,182 21,371 18,827 3,572 1,037
Current assets nBEE 69,917 113,983 64,941 67,340 40,364
Current liabilities nBEaRE (17,665) (496) (399) (387) (1,415)
Non-current liabilities EnBa’E (220) - - - -
Net assets attributable to ARBIHERA

owners of the Company EiEEEFE 69,214 134,858 83,369 70,525 39,986
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director
CHAN Chi Hang

Non-executive Director
Liu Hailong (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
YIP Ming

TSANG Chung Sing Edward

ZHANG Bin

WANG Ruiyang

COMPANY SECRETARY
WONG Ka Shing cPA, ACCA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

TSANG Chung Sing Edward (Chairman)
YIP Ming

ZHANG Bin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
ZHANG Bin (Chairman)

YIP Ming

TSANG Chung Sing Edward

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
YIP Ming (Chairman)

TSANG Chung Sing Edward

ZHANG Bin

REGISTERED OFFICE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 2202, 22nd Floor

118 Connaught Road West

Hong Kong

INVESTMENT MANAGER
Avia Asset Management Limited
Unit A, Level 9, Fortis Tower
77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

AUDITOR
RSM Hong Kong

CUSTODIANS

UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited
China Tonghai Securities Limited

I Win Securities Limited

Head & Shoulders Securities Limited

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch

STOCK CODE
2312

WEBSITE
http:/www.cflg.com.hk
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